
Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 6 Tachwedd 2013  

 

Amser: 
09:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Alun Davidson 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8639 
Pwyllgorac@cymru.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.22 i ethol Cadeirydd dros dro   

2 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

3 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o 
amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 
(09:00 - 09:30) (Tudalennau 1 - 37)  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 1 

 

Graham Hillier, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol ar gyfer Gweithrediadau y De 

Martyn Evans, Rheolwr Cynllunio Ecosystemau a Phartneriaethau De Cymru 

Jessica Poole, Arweinydd Tîm Ardal Caerdydd a Chasnewydd 

 
  

4 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o 
amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan yr Athro Stuart Cole (09:30 - 
10:00) (Tudalennau 38 - 50)  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 2 

 

 Yr Athro Stuart Cole 
  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



5 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o 
amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan y Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach 
a Chynghrair Trafnidiaeth De Ddwyrain Cymru (10:10 - 10:55) 
(Tudalennau 51 - 81)  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 3 : Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 4 : Cynghrair Trafnidiaeth De Ddwyrain Cymru (SEWTA) 
 

Joshua Miles, Cynghorwr Polisi, Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach 

Iestyn Davies, Pennaeth Materion Allanol, Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach 

Clive Campbell Cadeirydd, Grŵp Polisi SEWTA 

Simon Nicholls, Prif Gynllunydd Trafnidiaeth 
  

6 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o 
amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Ymddiriedolaethau Natur 
Cymru, RSPB Cymru a Chyfeillion y Ddaear Cymru (10:55 - 11:40) 
(Tudalennau 82 - 97)  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 5 : Ymddiriedolaethau Natur Cymru 

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 6 : RSPB Cymru 

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 6 : Cyfeillion y Ddaear Cymru   

 

James Byrne, Living Rheolwr Eiriolaeth Tirweddau Byw, Ymddiriedolaethau 

Natur Cymru  

Mike Webb, Uwch-swyddog Cadwraeth, Cynllunio, RSPB Cymru 

Gareth Clubb, Cyfarwyddwr, Cyfeillion y Ddaear Cymru   
  

7 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o 
amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Sefydliad y Peirianwyr Sifil 
Cymru (11:40 - 12:10) (Tudalennau 98 - 100)  

E&S(4)-26-13 papur 8 

 

Keith Davies, Cyfarwyddwr, Sefydliad Peirianwyr Sifil Cymru  

8 Papurau i’w nodi  (Tudalennau 101 - 102)  

Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Hydref 
  

Sesiwn breifat 

9 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 9   



10 Ystyried y dystiolaeth (12:10 - 12:30)  



Eitem 3

Tudalen 1

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



1 

 

 
 

Tystiolaeth i Ymchwiliad Pwyllgor yr Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd i ymgynghoriad 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar goridor yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd  

 

Cyflwyniad 

 

Pwrpas Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yw sicrhau bod adnoddau naturiol Cymru yn cael eu cynnal, 

eu gwella a’u defnyddio’n gynaliadwy, nawr ac yn y dyfodol. Rydym yn croesawu’r cyfle hwn 

i ymateb i ymchwiliad y pwyllgor i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer ymgynghoriad ar 

goridor yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd. 

 

Mae gwaith strategol cychwynnol wedi dechrau i ddatblygu cynigion cyfredol Llywodraeth 

Cymru. Mae ymgynghoriad wedi agor (23 Medi 2013 tan 16 Rhagfyr 2013) ar gynllun drafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru ac asesiadau amgylcheddol cysylltiedig sydd, ar hyn o bryd, yn cynnwys 

Adroddiad Amgylcheddol Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol (SEA) a gwaith i lywio Asesiad 

Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd (HRA) Strategol. Rydym eisoes wedi cyflwyno ymateb ffurfiol i gam 

cwmpasu’r SEA a byddwn yn ymateb i’r holl ymgynghoriadau a dogfennau cyfredol. Gall y 

cyhoedd weld ein hymatebion. Gan mai ymgynghoriad lefel strategol yw hwn, nid oes 

cynllun manwl i ni gyflwyno sylwadau arno. Yr opsiynau yw’r coridor a ffafrir gan 

Lywodraeth Cymru, dau goridor amgen sy’n wahanol i’r coridor a ffafrir am ryw draean o’i 

hyd, ac ystyried opsiwn gwneud y lleiaf posibl (h.y. dim adeiladu darn newydd o ffordd, ond 

ystyried cynlluniau trafnidiaeth sydd eisoes wedi’u cynnig yn y cyffiniau). Bydd cynnal SEA ac 

HRA yn ystod y cam strategol yn dangos a fydd angen HRA ac Asesiad o’r Effaith 

Amgylcheddol (EIA) yn y cam prosiect, a chwmpas yr asesiadau hynny. 

 

1.  Rolau Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru mewn perthynas â’r cynigion drafft ar gyfer Coridor yr M4 

Rydym yn cydnabod pwysigrwydd strategol Coridor yr M4 i les economaidd Cymru ac 

economi ehangach y Deyrnas Unedig. Rydym wedi ymrwymo i weithio gyda Llywodraeth 

Cymru i ganfod atebion a fydd yn helpu i sicrhau bod modd gwella Coridor yr M4 tra’n 

lleihau unrhyw effaith andwyol sylweddol ar adnoddau amgylcheddol sydd wedi’u cydnabod 

fel rhai pwysig. Nodir y prif faterion amgylcheddol yn adran 2 isod. Mae gennym sawl rôl 

mewn perthynas â’r cynigion hyn: 

 

Fel Cynghorydd rydym yn rhoi cyngor technegol o bob math i ddylanwadu ar ddatblygiad y 

cynllun a’i Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol ac Asesiad Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd lefel cynllun. 

Ni fydd ein cyngor yn rhagfarnu unrhyw gyngor y gallai ein Tîm Asesu Strategol ei roi fel 

Ymgynghorai Statudol a chorff ymgynghorol ar ôl i’r cynlluniau gael eu cwblhau. 

 

Rydym yn Ymgynghorai Statudol ar yr Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol statudol ac Asesiad 

Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd lefel cynllun. 

 

Tudalen 31



2 

 

Fel rheoleiddiwr mae gennym sawl rôl mewn perthynas â rhoi trwydded/caniatâd, gyda 

rolau cydymffurfio a gorfodi cysylltiedig mewn perthynas ag unrhyw ganiatâd a roddir, yn 

cynnwys, ond heb ei gyfyngu: 

 

· Caniatâd Amddiffyn rhag Llifogydd 

· Trwyddedau neu Eithriadau Amgylcheddol – Materion Rheoli Gwastraff 

· Trwyddedau Amgylcheddol – Gollyngiadau Ansawdd Dŵr 

· Trwyddedau Amgylcheddol – Materion Adnoddau Dŵr 

· Trwyddedau Rhywogaethau a Warchodir gan Ewrop 

· Trwyddedau Rhywogaethau a Warchodir yn Genedlaethol 

· Caniatâd/cydsyniad Safleoedd o Ddiddordeb Gwyddonol Arbennig 

· Trwyddedau Morol 

 

 

2.  Materion Amgylcheddol Allweddol ar gyfer Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 

 

Effaith Bosibl ar Safleoedd Dynodedig Ewropeaidd 

Caiff safleoedd o bwys Ewropeaidd ar gyfer cadwraeth natur eu dynodi fel Ardaloedd 

Cadwraeth Arbennig (ACA) o dan y Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd, ac Ardaloedd Gwarchodaeth 

Arbennig (AGA) o dan y Gyfarwyddeb Adar. Gyda’i gilydd, cyfeirir atynt fel safleoedd 

Ewropeaidd neu rwydwaith Natura 2000. Yn ogystal, polisi Llywodraeth Cymru yw bod 

safleoedd sydd wedi’u dynodi’n Wlyptiroedd o Bwysigrwydd Rhyngwladol, neu safleoedd 

Ramsar yn cael eu trin fel safleoedd dynodedig Ewropeaidd hefyd. Felly, mae’r tri math o 

safle’n destun HRA; sef asesiad a wneir pan fydd yna gynlluniau, rhaglenni neu brosiectau 

drafft sy’n debygol o gael effaith sylweddol ar unrhyw un o nodweddion dynodedig unrhyw 

safle Ewropeaidd a natur gydlynol rhwydwaith Natura 2000. Yr Awdurdod Cymwys, y sawl 

sy’n llunio’r cynllun neu’r sawl sy’n cynnig y prosiect – sef Llywodraeth Cymru yn yr achos 

hwn -  sy’n gyfrifol am gynnal yr HRA, ac mae angen ymgynghori â’r corff cadwraeth natur 

priodol – Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn yr achos hwn. 

 

Byddai’r tri llwybr sydd wedi’u cynnig fel rhan o’r cynllun drafft yn cynnwys adeiladu pont 

newydd ar draws Afon Gwy (ACA). Mae dyletswydd statudol ar Lywodraeth Cymru a 

Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru i ‘osgoi dirywiad y cynefinoedd ac aflonyddu sylweddol’ o dan 

Erthygl 6(3) y Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd. 

 

Hefyd, bydd angen ystyried effeithiau anuniongyrchol posibl ar nifer o safleoedd 

Ewropeaidd eraill yng nghyffiniau’r cynigion fel rhan o unrhyw HRA strategol a/neu lefel 

prosiect. Mae safleoedd a allai berthyn i’r categori hwn yn cynnwys ACA, AGA a safle Ramsar 

Aber Afon Hafren, ac ACA Ystlumod Dyffryn Gwy a Fforest y Dena. Byddai safleoedd o’r fath 

yn cael eu sgrinio i ddechrau i weld a oes angen HRA os oes posibilrwydd y bydd cysylltiad 

hydrolegol neu allyriadau i’r awyr yn cael eu heffeithio. Mae sawl cam i Asesiad Rheoliadau 

Cynefinoedd sy’n berthnasol adeg y gwaith cynllunio ac wrth gyflawni’r prosiect: 

 

· Asesiad o Effaith Sylweddol Tebygol ar safle Ewropeaidd 

 

Tudalen 32



3 

 

· Lle na ellir gwarantu na fydd effeithiau sylweddol, rhaid cynnal Asesiad Priodol, sy’n 

ystyried a fydd cynllun neu brosiect yn effeithio’n andwyol ar gyfanrwydd y safleoedd 

Ewropeaidd, o ystyried amcanion safleoedd cadwraeth. 

 

· Os na ellir gwarantu na fydd effeithiau andwyol, rhaid i’r awdurdod cymwys bennu a oes 

opsiynau eraill yn hytrach na chwblhau’r cynllun neu brosiect. Ni all yr ystyriaeth hon 

ystyried ffactorau economaidd - h.y. ni ellir diystyru ateb drutach 

 

· Os nad oes opsiynau eraill, rhaid i’r Awdurdod Cymwys fod yn fodlon bod yna resymau 

hanfodol sef er budd cyhoeddus tra phwysig a bod modd sicrhau digon o fesurau unioni i 

ddiogelu cyfanrwydd cyffredinol y safleoedd Ewropeaidd. 

 

Mae’r broses Asesiad Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd ar gyfer y cynnig hwn yn gofyn i Lywodraeth 

Cymru sicrhau na fyddai unrhyw niwed. 

 

 

Effeithiau Posibl ar Safleoedd Dynodedig Cenedlaethol 

Yn ogystal â’r dynodiad Ewropeaidd, mae cyfres arall o safleoedd â dynodiad ffurfiol. Yng 

nghyd-destun y cynigion hyn, y safleoedd allweddol yw Safleoedd o Ddiddordeb Gwyddonol 

Arbennig (SoDdGA) amrywiol Gwastadeddau Gwent a gafodd eu hysbysu oherwydd yr 

amrywiaeth o blanhigion ac infertebratau dŵr sy’n gysylltiedig â rhewynau a ffosydd y 

system ddraenio. 

 

Mae diddordeb arbennig y SoDdGA hyn yn dibynnu ar y system ddraenio a’i rheolaeth 

barhaus, ynghyd ag ansawdd a chyfanswm y dŵr yn y rhewynau a’r ffosydd. Gall unrhyw 

ddatblygiad sy’n cael effaith andwyol ar unrhyw un o’r nodweddion hyn gael effaith 

andwyol ar y bywyd gwyllt y cafodd yr ardal ei hysbysu amdano i ddechrau. 

 

Mae Gwastadeddau Gwent yn bwysig ar gyfer rhywogaethau planhigion tanddwr sy’n 

gysylltiedig â dŵr agored, fel y dyfrllys blewynnaidd Potamogeton trichoides, a phlanhigion 

sy’n ymddangos ar wyneb y dŵr fel y saethlys Sagittaria sagittifolia. 

 

Yn ein barn ni, byddai llwybr unrhyw ffordd newydd, fel y cynigir yng nghynllun drafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru, yn effeithio ‘n uniongyrchol ar y safleoedd hyn: 

 

▪ Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Redwick a Llandyfenni 

▪ Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Whitson  

▪ Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Trefonnen ac Allteuryn 

▪ Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Llansanffraid Gwynllŵg 

 

Mae hyn yng nghyd-destun cymryd tir yn uniongyrchol o’r SoDdGA hyn (colli arwynebedd 

SoDdGA i’r ffordd) yn ogystal â newidiadau tebygol i ansawdd y dŵr a’r cyfanswm dŵr sydd 

ar gael, a chyfyngiadau ar y gallu i roi gweithrediadau rheoli ffafriol ar waith.  

 

Hefyd, gallai’r gwaith gael effaith anuniongyrchol ar y safleoedd canlynol: 

 

· Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Magwyr a Gwndy 

· SoDdGA Cors Magwyr 

Tudalen 33



4 

 

· SoDdGA Gwlyptiroedd Casnewydd 

· Gwastadeddau Gwent: SoDdGA Tredelerch a Llanbedr Gwynllŵg  

 

Mae’n werth nodi bod SoDdGA Gwlyptiroedd Casnewydd yn rhan o Warchodfa Natur 

Genedlaethol Casnewydd, a adeiladwyd i wireddu ymrwymiad Llywodraeth y DU i greu ardal 

sylweddol o gynefin gwlyptir ar lannau Aber Afon Hafren i wneud yn iawn am golli SoDdGA 

Aber Afon Taf/Elái ar ôl adeiladu Morglawdd Bae Caerdydd. 

 

Gallai newidiadau i’r patrwm draenio a newidiadau yng nghyfanswm y dŵr sydd ar gael a 

newidiadau i ansawdd dŵr gael effaith anuniongyrchol ar yr holl safleoedd hyn. 

 

Rydym yn asesu’r cynllun drafft i bennu arwyddocâd yr effeithiau hyn yn absenoldeb y 

manylion a fyddai’n rhan o unrhyw ymgynghoriad lefel prosiect dilynol. 

 

Mae dyletswydd ar Lywodraeth Cymru i gymryd camau rhesymol i sicrhau bod y 

nodweddion dynodedig yn cael eu gwarchod a’u gwella ymhellach wrth benderfynu a ddylid 

mabwysiadu’r cynllun ai peidio. 

 

 

Effaith Bosibl ar Rywogaethau a Warchodir 

Mae’r holl rywogaethau a restrir yn Atodlen 2 a 4 o Reoliadau Gwarchod Cynefinoedd a 

Rhywogaethau 2010 yn Rhywogaethau a Warchodir gan Ewrop. Yng nghyd-destun y cynllun 

drafft hwn, mae Rhywogaethau a Warchodir gan Ewrop yn cynnwys: 

 

· Pob rhywogaeth o ystlum 

· Y fadfall ddŵr gribog 

· Y dyfrgi 

· Y pathew 

 

Pan fydd rhywogaeth a warchodir gan Ewrop yn bresennol, ac mae cynnig yn debygol o 

dorri’r ddeddfwriaeth sy’n ei gwarchod, rhaid i ddatblygiad gael trwydded gan CNC fel yr 

awdurdod priodol cyn i’r gwaith allu mynd yn ei flaen. Dim ond dan yr amgylchiadau 

canlynol y gallwn ni roi’r trwyddedau hyn: 

 

‘diogelu iechyd y cyhoedd neu ddiogelwch y cyhoedd neu unrhyw reswm hanfodol arall sydd 

o fudd cyhoeddus tra phwysig yn cynnwys rhesymau cymdeithasol neu economaidd eu natur 

a chanlyniadau buddiol sy’n bwysig iawn i’r amgylchedd.’ 

 

A rhaid bodloni’r meini prawf isod: 

 

‘Does yna ddim dewis arall boddhaol’ ac  

 

‘Ni fydd y datblygiad yn cael effaith niweidiol ar y gwaith o gynnal poblogaeth y rhywogaeth 

dan sylw ar statws cadwraethol ffafriol yn eu hystod naturiol’. 

 

Mae ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar fioamrywiaeth, fflora a ffawna yn 

hanfodol dan y broses SEA. 

 

Tudalen 34



5 

 

Yn ystod y gwaith strategol, a heb wybodaeth arolwg manwl a fyddai’n rhan o Asesiad o’r 

Effaith Amgylcheddol, ni allwn ddweud a fydd y cynllun yn effeithio ar unrhyw un o’r 

Rhywogaethau a Warchodir gan Ewrop, er y gallwn ddweud bod pob un o’r rhywogaethau 

wedi’u cofnodi yn y gorffennol yng nghyffiniau’r coridorau sy’n cael eu hystyried yn y cynllun 

drafft. 

 

Yn ogystal, mae nifer o rywogaethau eraill o anifeiliaid a phlanhigion yn cael eu gwarchod 

gan ddeddfwriaeth genedlaethol. Yn yr un modd, heb arolwg manwl, ni allwn ddweud a fydd 

effaith ar y rhywogaethau hynny. 

 

 

Tirwedd Hanesyddol 

Mae’n hanfodol ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar dreftadaeth ddiwylliannol fel 

rhan o’r broses Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol. 

Mae cynnwys Gwastadeddau Gwent yn y Gofrestr o Dirweddau o Ddiddordeb Hanesyddol 

Eithriadol (Cadw/ICOMOS UK (Cyngor Rhyngwladol Henebion a Safleoedd)/CCGC), 1997) yn 

adlewyrchu pwysigrwydd y dirwedd hanesyddol.  

 

Gofynnir i awdurdodau cymwys ystyried gwybodaeth am y Gofrestr wrth bwyso a mesur 

goblygiadau datblygiadau “sydd o’r fath raddfa faint fel y byddent yn cael effaith fwy nag 

effaith leol ar ardal sydd ar y Gofrestr”, (Polisi Cynllunio Cymru, 2012). Defnyddir y 

fethodoleg Asesu Arwyddocâd Effaith Datblygiad ar Ardaloedd o Dirwedd Hanesyddol ar y 

Gofrestr (ASIDOHL2) i asesu arwyddocâd effaith bosibl datblygiadau ar dirwedd hanesyddol 

mewn perthynas â’r Ymddiriedolaeth Archaeolegol briodol yng Nghymru a Cadw. 

 

 

Dŵr 

Mae’n hanfodol ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar ddŵr fel rhan o’r broses 

Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol. 

 

 

Y Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Dŵr 

Nod cyffredinol Fframwaith Cyfarwyddeb Dŵr yr UE yw sicrhau system integredig o ddiogelu 

a gwella dŵr a’i ddefnyddio’n gynaliadwy. Dylid ystyried pob agwedd ar ddŵr, yn cynnwys 

ansawdd, cyfaint a llif dŵr (dŵr ar yr wyneb a dŵr daear), cyflenwad a chapasiti dŵr, trin 

dŵr gwastraff a pherygl llifogydd. Mae eu heffaith ar fuddiannau ecolegol yn berthnasol 

hefyd. O dan y Gyfarwyddeb, rhaid sicrhau nad yw statws cyrff dŵr yn dirywio. Dylai pob 

corff o ddŵr wyneb a dŵr daear geisio sicrhau statws da erbyn 2015. Mae’r Gyfarwyddeb yn 

caniatáu gohirio’r dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflawni hyn tan ddiwedd y trydydd cylch yn 2027. 

Rhaid rhoi’r gorau i arllwys sylweddau peryglus â blaenoriaeth (y sylweddau mwyaf 

gwenwynig a arllwysir i ddŵr) erbyn 2020.  

 

Gall cynlluniau trafnidiaeth gynhyrchu sylweddau peryglus â blaenoriaeth fel cadmiwm, sinc, 

copr, olewau mwynol a llygryddion organig. Dylai’r cynllun ddangos na fydd unrhyw effaith 

andwyol ar statws cyrff dŵr perthnasol. Rhaid rhoi rhaglen realistig a dichonadwy o fesurau, 

costau ac ymrwymiadau ar waith er mwyn mynd i’r afael ag unrhyw effaith a welir ar gyrff 

dŵr. Fel arall, rhaid i’r cynllun beidio â chael effaith andwyol ar adnoddau dŵr, nodweddion 

dŵr ac argaeledd dŵr ar lefel strategol neu brosiect. 

Tudalen 35



6 

 

 

 

Rheoli Peryglon Llifogydd 

Rhaid asesu cynigion yn ystod y gwaith strategol ac wrth ddatblygu’r prosiect. Mae’n 

cynnwys ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar asedau materol ac ar yr hinsawdd. 

 

Mae’r cynigion ar gyfer Coridor yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd wedi’u lleoli mewn ardaloedd 

lle mae perygl uchel o lifogydd, yn ôl Mapiau Cyngor Datblygu Llywodraeth Cymru a’n 

Mapiau Parthau Llifogydd ni’n hunain. O ran y perygl o lifogydd llanw, mae’r seilwaith 

presennol, i’r de o Gasnewydd yn bennaf, yn cael ei amddiffyn rhag llifogydd llanw. 

 

Wrth nodi problemau ac effeithiau, dylid bod yn rhagofalus a symud y llwybr a ffafrir oddi 

wrth ardaloedd lle mae perygl uchel o lifogydd. Yn dilyn hynny, dylid dangos bod peryglon a 

chanlyniadau llifogydd yn cael eu rheoli mewn modd derbyniol gydol oes y datblygiad (75 

mlynedd yn unol â’r Canllawiau Arfarnu Prosiectau cyfredol) oherwydd ffactorau newid yn 

yr hinsawdd. Mae’n bosibl bod cymhwyso ffactorau newid yn yr hinsawdd yn dangos bod y 

llanw’n torri/gorlifo’r amddiffynfeydd môr. 

 

Rhaid asesu perygl llifogydd dŵr arfordirol, prif afon a/neu ddŵr wyneb. Bydd angen canfod 

effeithiau’r Cynllun ar lifogydd mewn mannau eraill a dangos eu bod yn dderbyniol. 

 

Bydd angen cytuno ar gynllun rheoli dŵr a’i weithredu’n effeithiol. 

 

Bydd angen Caniatâd Amddiffyn rhag Llifogydd gennym ni i weithio ar, dros neu ger prif afon 

ddynodedig a bydd angen caniatâd yr Awdurdod Llifogydd Lleol Blaen ar gyfer cyrsiau dŵr 

cyffredin. 

 

Priddoedd a Thir sydd wedi’u heffeithio gan halogiad 

Mae’n hanfodol ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar briddoedd fel rhan o’r broses 

Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol. 

 

 

Materion Ychwanegol yn ymwneud â Thir sydd wedi’i effeithio gan Halogiad 

Bydd heriau peirianyddol anodd a fydd yn gofyn am asesiad technegol manwl gan fod y 

llwybr ger safleoedd tirlenwi gweithredol a hanesyddol, yn cynnwys Safle Tirlenwi Docks 

Way. 

 

Bydd angen i unrhyw atebion adfer a pheirianyddol a gynigir atal effaith andwyol ar ddŵr a 

reolir, priddoedd a buddiannau ecolegol. Bydd angen sicrwydd arnom y gellir osgoi symud 

halogyddion. 

  

Os bydd angen amrywio Trwyddedau Amgylcheddol y gosodiadau, byddai angen i ni fod yn 

fodlon na fyddai’r gwaith sy’n dal i fynd rhagddo a’r rheolaeth hirdymor yn cael effaith 

amgylcheddol andwyol. 

 

Gall y cynigion gynnig y cyfle i wella ac adfer yr adnodd pridd. 

 

 

Tudalen 36



7 

 

Materion Rheoli Gwastraff Ychwanegol 

Rydym yn croesawu’r ffaith bod strategaeth a chynllun rheoli gwastraff wedi’u paratoi. 

 

 

Materion Ychwanegol yn ymwneud ag Ansawdd Aer 

Mae’n hanfodol ystyried effeithiau posibl cynllun neu raglen ar aer fel rhan o’r broses 

Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol. 

 

Rydym yn croesawu’r cyfle i drafod methodolegau a pharamedrau ar gyfer yr asesiad o 

ansawdd aer a dyddodi llygryddion a gludir yn yr aer ac effeithiau hynny. 

 

 

3.  Sut bydd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn gweithredu mewn perthynas â’r cynllun drafft 

Mae ein staff yn meithrin perthynas waith dda gyda thîm prosiect Llywodraeth Cymru a’i 

gwmni cynghori, Arup. Rydym yn hyderus bod gennym y sgiliau a’r galluoedd yn y sefydliad i 

allu cynghori ar y broses gynllunio ac ymateb iddi. 

 

Bydd Tîm Asesu Strategol Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn cyflawni’r rôl ymgynghorai statudol 

wrth ymateb i Adroddiad Amgylcheddol yr Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol  a gwaith HRA, 

ar hyd braich ac yn annibynnol yn weithredol ar yr holl staff sy’n rhoi cyngor anffurfiol ‘heb 

ragfarn’ mewn cyfarfodydd ac ymateb ffurfiol i’r cynllun drafft ei hun. 

 

Ni fydd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn ymateb i’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Iechyd na’r Asesiad o’r 

Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb gan nad yw’r materion hyn yn rhan o’n cylch gwaith. 

 

Maes o law, pe bai cynllun ffordd lefel prosiect yn cael ei gyflwyno, byddwn yn ystyried 

ceisiadau am drwydded/caniatâd ac yn gofyn am gyngor fel rhan o’r ystyriaethau hynny. 

 

4.  Crynodeb 

Mae Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn mynd ati’n ddiwyd i asesu’r cynllun drafft ar gyfer coridor yr 

M4 a’r asesiadau amgylcheddol cysylltiedig mewn perthynas â’n cylch gwaith amgylcheddol 

statudol. Mae’r cynllun drafft yn codi materion pwysig ar draws ein cylch gwaith, yn 

cynnwys mewn perthynas â safleoedd dynodedig, perygl llifogydd, rhywogaethau a 

warchodir, tir halogedig, rheoli gwastraff a thirwedd hanesyddol. Rydym wrthi’n asesu 

arwyddocâd y materion hyn ar hyn o bryd er mwyn rhoi barn gytbwys i Lywodraeth Cymru 

ar ei chynllun drafft fel ei chynghorydd amgylcheddol statudol. Edrychwn ymlaen at gael 

deialog parhaus â chi ynghylch Coridor yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd, a materion 

amgylcheddol yn arbennig. 

 

Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales 

16 Hydref 2013 

Tudalen 37



1 

 

NAfW Env  M4 A48 v5 Short 23 Oct 13 

Y PWLLGOR AMGYLCHEDD A CHANALIADWYEDD  v5 

CYNYLLIAD CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU     

CYNIGION LLYWODRAETH CYMRU AR GYFER YR M4 YN ARDAL 

CASNEWYDD 

YMATEB O: Yr Athro Stuart Cole, CBE BA MSc FCILT FICE,  Athro Emeritws mewn 

Trafnidiaeth, Canolfan Ymchwil Trafnidiaeth Cymru, Prifysgol De Cymru 

 

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES 

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE  

GOVERNMENT PROPOSALS FOR THE M4 AROUND NEWPORT 

 

SUBMISSION FROM: Professor Stuart Cole CBE BA MSc FCILT FICE,  

Emeritus Professor of Transport, Wales Transport Research Centre, University of 

South Wales 

 

 
INTRODUCTION  

This submission presents the traffic and economic aspects of schemes for reducing 

congestion on the M4 corridor around Newport. It draws attention to the assumptions 

made in respect of future traffic expectations and refers briefly to environmental 

consequences. The submission proposes an alternative lower cost, more 

environmentally sensitive route, based on the lower road capacity which could be 

needed.   

 

Integrated Transport Policy Context 

The draft plan for the project M4 Corridor around Newport’ published by the 

Government (23 September 2013) itself says ‘it does not include public transport 

measures because the Welsh Government has commissioned a separate study and 

report on proposals to develop a Metro system for south east Wales’   

Over the longer term the Sewta Rail Strategy proposes over twenty new stations at 

for example Llanwern and Coedkernew; increased capacity on the Ebbw Valley line, 

and a new line to Creigiau and Beddau. The objective is to attract car commuters 

away from the M4, A470 and other key routes and onto the railway.  

The Sewta plan concludes: ‘several of its recommendations should be packaged to 

form an M4 corridor corporate strategy to provide realistic alternatives to car use in 

this congested corridor’. The forthcoming M4 public consultation should include the 

Cardiff Regional Metro, electrification of the SWML, the Sewta plan and the omitted 

A48 / steelworks road upgrade option. If it does not, then there is no integrated 

Eitem 4

Tudalen 38



2 

 

transport element; it would be contrary to Government transport policy and it would 

be a mistake. 

Causes of congestion on the current M4 - Summary 

• Its original design as the Newport northern by pass / northern distributor road 

later linked in to the M4. It has design faults resulting from that including the 

lack of a hard shoulder for some of its length. Its resultant capacity is 

insufficient for current traffic volumes.  

• The Brynglas Tunnels and adjacent structures (Usk bridge; steep climbing 

structure to the east; canal bridge to the west) which reduce a six lane 

motorway to four lanes  

• The M4 is used by local traffic as a local distributor road for short journeys 

within the local urban area. 

In addition the resilience of the M4 at times of temporary traffic disruption requires an 

alternative route  

Traffic requirements and transfers 

The consultation paper M4 Corridor around Newport forecasts a need for 20% more 

traffic capacity by 2035 

The Black/Purple Route is estimated to divert up to 40% of traffic away from the 

existing M4. This is more (far more?) than adequate. 

The proposed Blue Route is expected (based on Option C figures) to divert 6% - 

10% but this may be an underestimate and 15% might be more appropriate. This 

paper suggests a rationale and forecast reassessment be carried out. 

The consultation paper takes no account of the impact of rail electrification or the 

Metro developments under consideration by the Government along the M4 corridor. 

On the basis of for example the Newcastle upon Tyne Metro (1990’s) and the 

Bordeaux Tram network (2004) then an expected 20% - 30% transfer of peak traffic 

would be a conservative assessment.  

Rail electrification alone could reduce M4 peak traffic flows by 15%. This level of 

modal change and rail increased demand would justify the total investment in track, 

stations, train / tram train / tram rolling stock, buses and interchange hubs and obtain 

an acceptable benefit cost ratio (BCR). 

The Blue Route is likely to solve the congestion issue on the M4 as it arises. It will 

match forecast flows as they progress over the evaluation period and could provide 

congestion relief earlier than the Black / Purple Routes. The combined project with 

Metro / rail electrification could provide more than adequate relief to congestion over 

the period to 2035 based on the potential outputs of the re-run forecasts and actual 

growth 

Tudalen 39



3 

 

The construction logic also fits in that the congestion solution can be part – 

completed within five years and part over the following ten to fifteen years. This also 

runs in parallel with Welsh Government funding options   

 

 

GOVERNMENT OPTIONS / ANOTHER OPTION 

Additional capacity is required to reduce peak period traffic congestion on the M4 to 

the west, north and east of the Newport urban area of Newport. This is not in 

question.  

The Government’s proposals initially included four options including a section of the 

A 48 Newport Southern Distributor Road (SDR) now along with the Steelworks Road 

included in the Blue Route and put forward in this submission. The Government 

options referred to are:  

• Option C: existing A48 with grade separated junctions  (WelTAG, March 

2013) Now discontinued from the range of options by the Government 

• Red route: all – purpose new dual 2 – Lane road (WelTAG, 24 June 2013) 

• Purple route / Black Route – the full motorway standard proposals  

The completion date of 2033 was based on affordability if borrowing powers were not 

available.  This remains the case currently.  Any financial agreement between the 

Welsh Government and HM Treasury is unlikely to contain a road with no revenue 

stream such as tolls (or shadow tolls with revenue account expenditure 

consequences) to cover its costs. All borrowing would have to be within the PSBR 

cap set by HM Treasury.  

The transfer of the Severn Bridge tolls by England’s Department for Transport thus 

foregoing a lucrative ‘cash cow’ when facing budget cuts is unlikely unless 

maintenance costs escalate post concession. 

 

• Blue Route (proposed in this submission) 

The issue is whether the Black / Purple Routes proposed by the Government 

provide an unnecessary increase in capacity and in consequence 

unnecessary expenditure. The analysis considers whether the options on the 

basis of traffic forecasts a lower cost lower capacity and lower environmental 

impact option (called in this submission the Blue Route) would be more 

appropriate. A detailed description is shown below. Mapping of the route is 

shown in M4 Corridor around Newport (p8; p27-28).  

 

The Blue Route proposal is a combination of the A48 Southern Distributor Road 

upgrade (as in Option C) together with the Steelworks road re-constructed as a 2 

lane dual carriageway all – purpose road at motorway standard. The land acquired 

was sufficient for widening to a 3 – lane motorway standard at a future date.  

Tudalen 40



4 

 

The Blue Route involves an upgrade of the whole route from Junctions 23a and J24 

in the east to Junction 28 or 29 in the west. This would involve upgrading the current 

A48 SDR whose traffic flows are lower than were expected. This it has been 

suggested was largely a consequence of the number of at grade intersections which 

disrupt the free flow of east west traffic. Grade separated junctions would give these 

flows greater priority.  

 

Cost Estimates – M4 Corridor Options 

Cost estimates of the various schemes are available1, based on existing Department 

for Transport and Welsh Government guidance, and subject to caution. The cost 

estimates assumed each scheme to have an opening year of 2020, and include 

construction costs, land and property costs, preparation and supervision costs, and 

traffic-related maintenance costs.  

A48 Grade-Separated Junctions as “Option C” -      £345m 

Dual Carriageway on the Red Route -                      £830m 

Motorway on the Black Route -           £936m 

Blue Route (A48 / SWRd) -                     £380m 

 

TRAFFIC FORECASTS – M4 CORRIDOR AROUND NEWPORT 

UK Government road traffic forecasts continue to show traffic growth but other 

research shows that car usage has fallen since 2006 and plateaued with slow future 

growth.   

There is sufficient uncertainty therefore to question whether what is needed is a 

major new motorway (£936 m) (based on older forecasts and not taking account of 

recent car flow trends) or a considerably lower cost alternative (£380m) – The Blue 

Route.  

This option rebuilds, with grade-separated inter-sections, the A48 south of Newport 

and the Steelworks road (A 4810) the latter purchased from Tata Steel by the Welsh 

Government to increase east – west road capacity and reduce M4 congestion. The 

lower cost scheme could be constructed by 2018.  

The Steelworks Road was purchased by the Government from Tata Steel in 2006 to 

provide land to build a 7 km long section of the M4 relief motorway from J 23A. It 

was intended to link into the A 48 between J 24 and J 28. Both roads would then 

                                                           
1
 http://wales.gov.uk/docs//det/publications/130626m4weltagcemen.pdf 

Tudalen 41



5 

 

have grade separated junctions constructed. This scheme has been developed into 

the Blue Route 

The primary reasons for putting forward the Blue Route are: 

• The uncertainty of current traffic forecasts generally  

• Therefore the need to consider if the size of construction (and its cost) is 

justified. 

• If it is not justified then unnecessary environmental disbenefits and damage 

are incurred 

• The opportunity cost of construction if excessive financial allocation is made 

to this one scheme. It can through either direct (revenue account) 

expenditure terms or borrowing limits preclude other transport projects 

• All motorways of the M4’s age will require major maintenance over the next 5 

– 10 years.  

• The proposition is a 2 – lane Expressway standard dual carriageway 

matching lengths of the A470, A48 Carmarthenshire and the A55 will provide 

the required resilience.  

Traffic forecasts – discussion 

The traffic forecasts in the consultation document M4 Corridor around Newport (Fig 5 

page 11) indicate an increase in traffic of 20% over the period to 2035. 

This forecasting model (TEMPRO) uses assumptions on projections for the following 

variables 

• Population 

• Household 

• Workforce 

• Employment 

As indicated above it excludes public transport proposals and their possible impacts 

on traffic flows 

The traffic flows on the M4 north of Newport over the period 2006 – 2013 has been 

relatively level as shown in the Government’s own publication The M4 Corridor 

around Newport (Fig 3 and Fig 4 page 10) 

There was substantial growth in the late 1990’s but a levelling off from 2001 with a 

slight fall to 2012. There is therefore limited traffic evidence to suggest any change 

from the traffic flow plateau which has been in evidence since 2001 and a falling 

mean line from 2005. 

The underlying trends for traffic over the last eight years have been affected by: 

Tudalen 42



6 

 

• The economic downturn with static wages falling in real terms or 

unemployment reducing work journeys 

• Traffic congestion on strategic routes resulting in a transfer to train  

• Improvements in rail service capacity and reliability following investment by 

the Government in rail services since the new franchise took effect in 2004 / 

05.  

• The increase in petrol costs compared with rail fares has resulted in a cross 

price elasticity effect with a modal shift from car to rail 

(Please see Integrated Transport Policy Context above) 

In his paper to recent conferences Professor Peter Jones (CILT(UK) Public Policies 

Committee, London/ TUSG (UK) Conference Cardiff, 2013) suggests possible causal 

variables for the flattening of car usage 

• Increases in car costs 

• Income and GDP effects 

• Deterioration in road conditions 

• Improvements to the rail network  

• Spatial planning policies  

• Smarter choices 

• Improved mobile and internet Communications  

• Company car ownership and free fuel taxation regulations relating to payment 

in kind, have cut the number (in Great Britain) of taxpayers claiming both car 

and free fuel 

The company car change and income and GDP are only two variables which will be 

counteracted by the others having a negative effect on car usage 

Professor Phil Goodwin (UK Transport Statistics Users Group Conference, Cardiff, 

May 2013) suggested non – transport trends as causal variables in the plateauing of 

car use. 

 

• Rise in mobile phone computing 

• Cultural and attitude changes 

• Health, and environment as motivational factors to cut down on car use 

• Demographic changes – aging population; more single person households; 

women having children at a later age; young people and ‘empty nesters’ going 

back to live in city centre locations 

• Changing images of contemporary life idyllic living and travelling lifestyle  

• Projected revenue growth of online shopping and the growth in internet 

access, e-mails etc. from mobile phones has, and will increasingly reduce 

work and retailing journeys 

There are other developments in urban transition, transport and taxation policy: 

Tudalen 43



7 

 

Urban Policy and Transition – economically wealthy cities with high incomes and 

growing population show the greatest reduction in car use.   There have been 

reductions in car use in medium sized towns and in ‘sustainable travel towns’ (2004 

– 08) and lower car use in high density new urban develop. This is the case in 

Cardiff and Newport. Thus policy impacts and lifestyle change has also reduced car 

usage and is not restricted to an economic downturn. 

Some evidence suggests that the cumulative effects to discourage car use and 

encourage walk/cycle/public transport also have bigger impacts on car use than 

income and prices. The recent Active Travel Act should have that effect 

Tax revenue from the transport sector especially fuel excise duty had little effect on 

car usage until the mid – 2000’s 

Demand Management e.g. parking and road charging by usage; access quantity 

limits or prohibition 

Position in Wales 

Between 2007 and 2011 Wales saw reductions in traffic of 

• Cars     - 4% 

• Motorcycles            - 11% 

• Buses/coaches  - 14% 

• Goods vehicles  - 16% 

• Pedal cycles            + 26% 

• All motor vehicles             - 4% 

The stock of vehicles and the number of new registrations has fallen 

There could be several reasons for this change in Wales: 

• A modal shift to other forms of transport 

• buoyancy of the economy or high fuel prices 

• Longer term influences such as demographic change or behavioural change 

such as concern for the environment; geographical travel patterns; 

• short term influences on car use are fuel prices (price elasticity) and incomes  

• In the longer term population growth will give a rise in average car usage. 

Wales, population projections for the under 29 and 30 – 69 age groups (the 

biggest car users) are fairly constant from 2010 to 2034. 

 

 

Traffic forecast conclusion 

The conclusions to be drawn on future trends not peculiar to this project but 

applicable to most British and European Union road projects are: 

Tudalen 44



8 

 

• The presumption that car mileage has peaked arises from contrasting trends 

of reduced car usage in London; increases in rural areas. It might be 

suggested therefore that an area such as the Cardiff, Newport (and Valleys / 

Vale) and Bristol could be in between those two extremes 

• After the recession ends, will there be a lower level of car usage in absolute 

terms and will the rate of increase be similar to that in the immediate pre – 

recession 

• The forecast outcome (in M4 Corridor around Newport) does not reflect the 

recent trend and show a sharp uplift from 2012 to 2030 of 20%. An average 

growth of just over 1% 

• The assumptions are based on economic activity and car ownership rather 

than projected changes in modal split with no interpretation of the impact of 

major rail investment. 

• It is the uncertainty of the projections as suggested here and by the President 

of the Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE) Professor Brian Clarke. Professor 

Clarke made two key points at the National Transport Conference in Cardiff 

(September 2013) – (a) we are not sure if private motoring has peaked and 

(b) we are not sure if the trend in reduced driving by young males will continue 

• It is uncertain if the peak of car usage has been reached; that situation is 

contested, as the discussion over the Blue and Black / Purple Route options 

shows. A resolution needs to be achieved before the decision to build the 

Black / Purple Route or the Blue Route 

• The main drivers of the growth on car use – income, prices (e.g. fuel, 

competing public transport), population size and projections have not changed 

in any major way. 

• Car usage is likely to grow following economic recovery or increased 

consumer confidence but at a declining rate but in proportion to population 

change through the 30 – year forecasting period 

• Two large, respected business groups in Wales the FSB and the CBI both 

recognise the need for additional road capacity around Newport. The CBI 

refers to a M4 relief road being their first priority. The FSB specifies a grade-

separated A48 / Steelworks Road as being sufficient capacity and investing a 

large proposition of borrowing in one scheme is not in the best interests of the 

Welsh economy 

 

BLUE ROUTE ALTERNATIVE OPTION 

Description of the scheme 

As this option is not set out in the consultation document M4 Corridor around 

Newport a summary of the WelTAG Stage 1 analysis is set out here. A comparison 

of WelTAG Stage 1 scores for the Government proposals and this alternative are 

shown in Appendix 1. A map is also provided showing all options. 

Tudalen 45



9 

 

Up to March 2013 the Government Option C proposal had been assessed against 

the WelTAG criteria. The option would ‘improve the resilience of the network 

(including the M4) and could be phased to spread investment costs. The benefits to 

the A48 corridor upon scheme completion would be realised through journey time 

improvements, accessibility gains for southern Newport (including some of the city’s 

most disadvantaged wards), and “benefits for the movement of people and freight to 

key employment areas and services”. The negative impacts would include the 

possibility of some minor demolition of buildings, visual adverse impacts, and some 

biodiversity losses associated with the River Usk SAC (though the biodiversity rating 

for the scheme is more positive than the motorway’ – extract from WelTAG Stage 

1analysis (March 2013) 

The Blue Route proposal is a combination of the A48 Southern Distributor Road 

upgrade (as in Option C) together with the Steelworks road re-constructed as a 2 

lane dual carriageway all – purpose road at motorway standard. The land acquired 

was sufficient for widening to a 3 – lane motorway standard at a future date.  

The Blue Route involves an upgrade of the whole route from Junctions 23a and J24 

in the east to Junction 28 or 29 in the west. This would involve upgrading the current 

A48 SDR whose traffic flows are lower than were expected. This it has been 

suggested was largely a consequence of the number of at grade intersections which 

disrupt the free flow of east west traffic. Grade separated junctions would give these 

flows greater priority.  

The junctions where this may be feasible are Pont Ebbw, Maesglas West / East, 

Docks Entrance, Usk Way, Corporation Road, Nash Road, Queensway Meadows, 

Hartridge and Beatty Road. The intersection at Queensway Meadows could also be 

the link onto the A4801 Steelworks Road. This would facilitate two links onto the M4 

at J24 and J23a respectively. 

At the western end of the A48 north of Tredegar House conservation area and 

entering the M4 at J 28 there is currently a confluence of high peak traffic flows. The 

present A48 becomes a single carriageway 4 lane road between the Pont Ebbw 

junction and J28 on the M4. Currently there are traffic flow constraints at peak 

periods. There are Government proposals for redesigning this largely at grade 

junction. 

The 4 lane single carriageway road will require dualling to be able to carry the 

anticipated additional traffic particularly from the A487 and the M4 There is woodland 

to the north adjacent to Tredegar Park sports facilities which could be affected. To 

the south are UK Government and Agency offices with car parking and some recent 

tree plantings immediately adjacent to the highway. The National Trust property at 

Tredegar House is not compromised by this scheme. 

Land take 

Tudalen 46



10 

 

This is best shown on a map of the area which can be made available to the 

Committee. 

The Blue and Purple motorway options will take considerably more greenfield land 

than the proposed Blue Route which concentrates construction on using the existing 

road footprint, ex industrial land at Llanwern Steelworks with some limited areas of 

greenfield land  

Economic impact 

The upgrade of the A48 / SWRd could improve journey time reliability on the existing 

M4 corridor around Newport by offering an alternative route to the M4 in general and 

also in the event of major incidents on the present M4. This relief of traffic could 

improve the efficiency of long distance traffic (freight and people) thus providing 

improved connectivity to / from England and thus contribute to employment. An 

improved A48 passes through important retail, distribution and manufacturing areas. 

Initial traffic modelling showed that travel time on the network could be reduced as a 

result but there would be delays during construction. This last issue has been a 

consideration on the improvement of for example the M4 at Cardiff Gate but has in 

such cases been put aside as a reason for not proceeding with construction. 

Environmental impact 

The Red Route and the Purple / Black Routes (new M4) cross the River Usk SAC 

and SSSI and the Gwent Levels SSSI. 

The Blue Route will touch the Gwent Levels SSSI at Barecroft Common and is 

therefore not free of any adverse environmental impact. However the Steelworks 

Road extension has now been constructed (see below) with a single carriageway link 

to J23a.  

The Blue Route should give by far the lowest environmental impact for any road 

network improvement. As the new Steelworks road has largely been constructed as 

an at - grade roadway this would militate against any further adverse environmental 

consequences.  

The grade separated junction construction would create some issues but this could 

coincide with the proposed construction of 4000 houses on the adjacent land. 

However the resultant more freely flowing traffic could be expected to reduce 

emissions and noise.   

This route should reduce traffic congestion on the M4 and thus environmental 

impacts there; there will be some increase in traffic noise along the A48 / SWRd. 

Present land use is largely industrial or commercial with some housing where 

amelioration measures can be taken while levels of emissions and noise which are 

reducing as the age profile of the private car ‘fleet’ falls. 

Tudalen 47



11 

 

Social impact 

North of the Steelworks Road section of the proposal, south of the GWML railway 

and west of the Llanwern Steelworks,  the Glan Llyn and other developments will 

result in 4,000 houses and 40 ha of employment land. This site will be accessed by 

the Steelworks Road.  

At present, the access junctions are at grade controlled by traffic lights or 

roundabouts. This proposal would see these changed to grade–separated junctions. 

This should improve accessibility to the sites and provide greater connectivity to 

other parts of Newport and the M4 both east bound and west bound. The planning of 

these access points should have been (or should now be) considered to be 

compatible with the land use activities (e.g. cement works and new housing, 

steelworks, HGV operations to/from distribution centres and the Magor Brewery).  

Any adverse effects on cyclist and pedestrian movements will need to be taken into 

account.  Alternative routes can be provided so that any increased traffic volumes on 

the proposed corridor do not increase hazards or community severance. This applies 

particularly to the Purple/Black routes because as motorway options they would not 

include any provision for cyclists and walkers. 

 

CONCLUSION 

• Review  the current forecast assumptions bringing in those causal variables 

suggested above  

• Consider the wider context includes recognition of the benefits of avoiding 

construction on environmentally sensitive sites south of Newport  

• Consider the substantial cost savings that would be made in pressing ahead 

with the Blue Route (A48 Southern Distributor Road and the Steelworks 

Road) proposal set out below rather than a new M4, 

• Consider the wider financial context and significant spare borrowing capacity 

being available to the Welsh Government for measures to complement the 

A48, including bringing forward the plans for a Metro system and other 

transport infrastructure projects in south-east Wales.  

 

 

Professor Stuart Cole 

October 2013 

 

 

(Appendix 1 follows) 

 

 

 

Tudalen 48



12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

M4 Corridor around Newport WelTAG Stage 1 Comparison of Option Scores 

 

Criteria Doing Nothing Red Route All-

Purpose Road 

Purple Route 

Motorway 

Black Route 

new M4 

Blue Route 

Economy      

Transport 

Economic 

Efficiency 

(TEE) 

(---) (++) (+++) (+++) (++) 

Economic 

Activity and 

Location 

Impact (EALI) 

(---) (++) (++) (+++) (++) 

Environment      

Noise (--) (0) (0) (+) (+) 

Local Air 

Quality 

(--) (+) (+) (++) (+) 

Greenhouse 

Gas Emissions 

(-) (0) (+) (+)  

Landscape 

and 

Townscape 

(0) (---) (---) (---) (0) 

Biodiversity (0) (---) (---) (---) (-) 

Heritage (0) (--) (--) (--) (0) 

Water 

environment 

(0) (--) (--) (--) (0) 

Soils (0) (---) (---) (--) (0) 

Social      

Transport 

safety 

(--) (++) (+++) (+++) (++) 

Personal 

security 

(0) (+) (+) (+) (+) 

Permeability (-) (+) (+) (+) (+) 

Physical 

fitness 

(0) (+) (0) (0) (+) 

Social 

inclusion 

(-) (0) (+) (+) (0) 

Equality, (0) (+) (+) (+)  

Tudalen 49



13 

 

Diversity & 

Human Rights 

 

Tudalen 50



 

 

M4 Relief Road 

FSB Wales 

response to the 

Environment 

and 

Sustainability 

Committee 

18
th

 October 2013 

 

Eitem 5

Tudalen 51



 

2 

 

M4 Relief Road 

The Federation of Small Businesses Wales 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses Wales welcomes the opportunity to present its views to 

Environment and Sustainability Committee on the M4 relief road proposals. FSB Wales is the 

authoritative voice of small businesses in Wales. With 10,000 members, a Welsh Policy Unit, two 

regional committees and twelve branch committees; FSB Wales is in constant contact with small 

businesses at a grassroots level.  It undertakes a monthly online survey of its members as well as an 

annual membership survey on a wide range of issues and concerns facing small business. 

 

Introduction 

 

FSB Wales agrees that there are acute problems in and around Newport as a result of congestion on 

the M4. However, FSB Wales does not believe the economic, environmental and affordability 

concerns around the proposed M4 relief road have been sufficiently balanced. This is particularly the 

case for the current consultation, to which FSB Wales is yet to submit a full response. Wider 

consideration of the costs is needed to allow for further consideration of the infrastructure 

investment options that are available, including public transport measures such as the South East 

Wales Metro. 

 

Borrowing powers and the Silk Commission 

 

FSB Wales has taken an active interest in proposals for dealing with capacity issues on the M4 in and 

around Newport. FSB Wales has sought to make its position clear in relation to the proposed M4 

relief road as well as the recommendations of part one the Commission on Devolution in Wales and 

proposals for the devolution of toll income to the Welsh Government. 

 

As a result  of this ongoing engagement FSB Wales has written to both the Secretary of State for 

Wales and the First Minister to clarify its position and to seek a speedy resolution to the question of 

fiscal devolution (both letters are attached). This included three main points that were as follows: 

 

 The level of tolls levied on vehicles using either of the Severn Crossings should decrease at 

the earliest opportunity in order to remove a barrier to cross border trade and economic 

growth. Future toll revenue is an insufficient and unreliable source upon which to predicate 

borrowing for infrastructure; 

 

 FSB Wales accepts the need to maintain tolls to fund the maintenance of the Crossings but 

that any future tolls should be limited solely to covering the costs of maintenance and 

specifically those costs directly associated with maintaining the Severn crossings and not the 

ordinary costs associated with maintaining the highways. We also point out that we are 

currently of the opinion that the management of the tolls should be devolved to Wales; 

 

 The UK Government’s delay in responding to the first part of the Commission on Devolution 

in Wales is in our opinion causing uncertainty and having a negative impact on the Welsh 

economy. 

 

 

Tudalen 52



 

3 

 

Affordability of a relief road 

 

During the previous consultation on improving capacity in and around Newport, FSB Wales favoured 

option C which included a number of measures around the A48 to the south of Newport as well as 

associated public transport measures. This would cost an estimated £300m according to the Welsh 

Government consultation and would alleviate many of the problems of resilience and capacity
1
.  

 

The Commission on Devolution in Wales has created the possibility of the Welsh Government 

accessing borrowing powers of roughly £1.3bn as a result of fiscal devolution to Wales
2
. This has 

caused the Welsh Government to re-examine the potential for an M4 relief road to the south of 

Newport as an additional alternative. Research carried out by Arup on behalf of the Welsh 

Government has estimated that the three options provided in the current consultation would cost 

between £830m and £947m to implement
3
. Many observers have estimated that this cost could rise 

significantly. 

 

FSB Wales believes that given the significant environmental impact the full relief road would cause, 

there would likely be costly challenges to the implementation of the proposed development. This is 

reinforced in the previous Welsh Government consultation that stated: 

 

“Challenge from public and/or stakeholders who may oppose the scheme on grounds of likely 

environmental impact may also require consideration.”
4
 

 

Furthermore, FSB Wales is firmly of the view that focusing a significant proportion of spending on a 

narrow section of motorway in South East Wales is not an equitable use of resources. Rather, the 

Welsh Government should look to fund significant projects across Wales, such as improvements to 

the A55, the implementation of the South East Wales Metro and the potential electrification of the 

North Wales Main Line.  

 

It is disappointing to see that the current consultation includes no information about the costs of the 

three proposed relief roads. This is available in the supporting documentation but is not being put in 

context during the public consultation. FSB Wales believes this undermines the consultation process. 

 

Furthermore, there are clearly a number of alternatives such as the development of the A48 SDR 

and the South East Wales Metro that are not part of the consultation process. FSB Wales believes 

                                                             
1
 Welsh Government. 2012. M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Magor to Castleton (M4 CEM): Easing The 

Flow [online]. Available at: 

http://www.m4cem.com/downloads/reports/to%20email%20Consultation%20Document%20REV%20B%20-

%20E.pdf (accessed 16
th

 October 2013). P.42.  
2
 Commission on Devolution in Wales. 2012. Empowerment and Responsibility: Financial Powers to Strengthen 

Wales [Online]. Available at: 

http://commissionondevolutioninwales.independent.gov.uk/files/2013/01/English-WEB-main-report1.pdf 

(accessed 16th October 2013). P.115. 
3
 Welsh Government. 2013. M4 Corridor Around Newport: WelTAG Appraisal Report Stage 1 (Strategy Level) 

[Online]. Available at: http://www.m4newport.com/assets/issue-m4-corridor-around-newport-weltag-

appraisal-report-stage-1-(strategy-level).pdf (accessed 16
th

 October 2013). P.41. 
4
 Welsh Government. 2012. M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures (M4 CEM): WelTAG Appraisal Report Stage 1 

(strategy level) [Online]. Available at: http://www.m4newport.com/assets/issue-m4-weltag-stage-1-appraisal-

report-march-2013-signed.pdf (accessed 16th October 2013). P.61-62 

Tudalen 53



 

4 

 

this is a mistake and does not allow for the consideration of the full menu of options available to the 

Welsh Government.  

 

Environmental Impact 

 

The consultation issued by the Welsh Government during March and July 2012 contained an analysis 

of the environmental impact of the four options then presented. Clearly, option A (a new relief road 

to the south of Newport) offered the biggest economic advantage but also provided the most 

serious threat to the environment and at the highest cost in terms of capital investment
5
.  

 

FSB Wales believes that pursuing improvements to the A48 whilst also improving public transport in 

the areas would be a more reasonable option. This is particularly pertinent given that the current 

consultation identifies 43 per cent of journeys being less than 20 miles i.e. local traffic. The economic 

benefit of the A48 approach would still be significant, but the environmental and cost concerns 

would be far more limited. Furthermore, practical measures could be put in place far sooner for its 

delivery.  

 

Conclusion 

 

FSB Wales agrees that there are acute issues of capacity on the M4 in and around Newport. 

However, initial observations suggest the environmental, economic and affordability aspects of the 

proposals for a relief road south of Newport are not sufficiently balanced. The Welsh Government 

has failed to examine wider options such as electrification and improvements to the A48 as part of 

the consultation. Furthermore, the omission of cost implications in the public consultation 

undermines its credibility.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                             
5
 Ibid. P.57. 

Tudalen 54



 

5 

 

Contact: 

 

Federation of Small Businesses  

WALES OFFICE 

1 Cleeve House 

Lambourne Crescent 

Llanishen 

CARDIFF CF14 5GP 

 

Telephone: 029 2074 7406 

Email: policy.wales@fsb.org.uk 

Web: www.fsb.org.uk/wales  

 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses 

 

The FSB is non-profit making and non-party political. The Federation of Small Businesses is the 

UK's largest campaigning pressure group promoting and protecting the interests of the self-

employed and owners of small firms. Formed in 1974, it now has 200,000 members across 33 

regions and 194 branches. 

 

Lobbying 

Our lobbying arm - led by the Westminster Press and Parliamentary office - applies pressure on MPs, 

Government and Whitehall and puts the FSB viewpoint over to the media. The FSB also has Press 

and Parliamentary Offices in Glasgow, Cardiff and Belfast to lobby the devolved assemblies. 

Development Managers work alongside members in our regions to further FSB influence at a 

regional level. 

 

Member Benefits 

In addition, Member Services is committed to delivering a wide range of high quality, good value 

business services to members of the FSB. These services will be subject to continuing review and will 

represent a positive enhancement to the benefit of membership of the Leading Business 

Organisation in the UK. 

 

Vision 

A community that recognises, values and adequately rewards the endeavours of those who are self 

employed and small business owners within the UK 

 

The Federation of Small Businesses is the trading name of the National Federation of Self Employed 

and Small Businesses Limited. Our registered office is Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business 

Park, Blackpool, Lancashire, FY4 2FE. Our company number is 1263540 and our Data Protection Act 

registration number is Z7356876. We are a non-profit making organisation and we have registered 

with the Information Commissioner on a voluntary basis. 

 

Associate Companies 

We have two associated companies, FSB (Member Services) Limited (company number 02875304 

and Data Protection Act registration number Z7356601) and NFSE Sales Limited (company number 

01222258 and Data Protection Act registration number Z7315310). 

Tudalen 55



 

 

 
               

WALES OFFICE       SWYDDFA CYMRU 

1 Cleeve House 1 Tŷ Cleeve 

Lambourne Crescent Cilgant Lambourne 

Llanishen Llanishen 

Cardiff Caerdydd 

CF14 5GP CF14 5GP 

  

Tel/Ffȏn: 029 2074 7406   E-mail/E-bost: admin.wales@fsb.org.uk 

Fax/Ffacs: 029 2074 7595 Website/Safle We: www.fsb.org.uk 

 
 
 

 

 

Rt Hon David Jones MP 

Secretary of State for Wales 

The Wales Office 

Gwydyr House,  

Whitehall 

London 

SW1A 2NP 

 

09 September 2013 

 

Dear Secretary of State, 

 

Severn Crossings tolls and proposed M4 relief road 

 

Following recent developments regarding the issue of the Severn Crossings tolls and the 

proposed M4 relief road, I would like to clarify the position of FSB Wales. 

 

Tolls damage the Welsh economy 

FSB Wales members believe that the Severn Crossings tolls have a damaging effect on the Welsh 

economy.  While it is difficult to isolate the exact impact that the tolls have, this theory is 

supported by research from the Welsh Government in 2012 which showed that the total costs of 

the tolls to businesses and consumers is in excess of £80M per year, taking VAT into account 

(Welsh Government, The Impact of the Severn Tolls on the Welsh Economy, 2012). The impact on 

individual businesses has been well articulated by numerous small firms, companies and 

individual traders in a series of research and information-gathering exercises, most recently at an 

informal session held by Stephen Hammond MP in response to the Welsh Affairs Committee’s 

own report into the subject. The Committee highlighted its concerns that the high level of the 

tolls on the Severn Crossings hampers the development of businesses in Wales and deters 

inward investment to Wales (Welsh Affairs Committee, Crossing the Border: Road and Rail Links 

between England and Wales, 2012). In its report, it was recognised that other strategic road 

Tudalen 56



 

 

crossings had benefitted from the removal of tolls. It also noted that other economic impacts 

such as the imposition of changes to VAT which have generated additional income for HM 

Treasury.  

 

Despite opposition to the principle of road tolling, FSB Wales wishes to hold a pragmatic (‘real 

world’) position that recognises the strategic importance of both crossings to the communities 

either side of the Severn Estuary.  As such, our members accept the need to maintain tolls to 

fund their maintenance but are strongly of the view that any such tolls should in the future be 

limited solely to covering the costs of maintenance. This cost should be limited to the costs 

directly associated with maintaining the Severn crossings and exclude the ordinary costs 

associated with maintaining the highways. 

 

 

M4 relief road 

We understand the desire for an M4 relief road.  In responding to the Welsh Government’s 

consultation on M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures in 2012, FSB Wales’ preferred option was 

Highway Option C: Grade separated junction improvements to the A48 SDR as set out in Welsh 

Government’s 2012 consultation M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Magor to Castleton (M4 

CEM) Easing the Flow. This option minimises environmental impact while supporting sustainable 

economic development across the South East Wales region.  Even within this option, we would 

prefer to see greater use made of the Steelworks Access Road which would provide a line directly 

from junction 28 to 23a. This would significantly increase the resilience of the network whilst 

dealing with some of the capacity issues between Castleton and Magor. In times of constrained 

public expenditure, FSB Wales feels that this is a practical and affordable measure that would 

bring lasting benefit, not only to the users of the M4, but the outlying communities that surround 

Newport.    

 

 

Borrowing powers and tolls 

Given that there is much consensus on the need to reduce tolls and to support infrastructure 

development across Wales, we feel that any attempt to fund a relief road using Severn Crossings 

tolls is flawed and does not represent an efficient and effective use of income.  The issue of the 

need for an M4 relief road should be treated separately to that of the future of revenue from the 

Severn Crossings.  The concession period for the Severn Crossings is limited to 30 years, although 

we recognise that the Secretary of State has powers under the Severn Bridges Act to levy tolls for 

a maximum of 35 years.  The actual end date of the concession will be achieved when Severn 

River Crossings has collected a fixed sum of money from tolls and current predictions suggest 

that this will be 2018 (Written evidence from Welsh Government to Welsh Affairs Committee, 

SCT 03, June 2013). It is noteworthy that the predicted endpoint of the concession varies and has 

been put back on numerous occasions.  This tolling period could be extended by up to five years 

to recoup UK Government losses.  In 2012, research by Welsh Government suggested that the 

concession could come to an end in around 2017 (Welsh Government, The Impact of the Severn 

Tudalen 57



 

 

Tolls on the Welsh Economy, 2012).  As it is currently accepted that this is now likely to be 2018, 

this suggests that the amounts collected via Severn Crossings tolls are decreasing and would not 

represent a stable base on which to predicate any future Welsh Government borrowing powers. 

 

We would seek clarification as to whether the UK Government will continue to maintain tolls 

after the end of the concession as recent estimates hold that this debt is around £88 million. A 

basic calculation suggests that this will require a further two years of tolling.  Clarification on the 

current stage of negotiations is now urgently required as the Welsh Government has argued that 

it should make any decisions on future tolls and has stated its desire to both lower the tolls and 

collect additional income to fund infrastructure improvements.  Given that a 2010 report 

estimated the running costs of the crossings to be £15M with a yearly income of £72M (Welsh 

Affairs Committee, The Severn Crossings Toll, 2010), FSB Wales does not believe that it is possible 

to reduce the tolls and also use future income to fund an M4 relief road, estimated to cost £1BN. 

Such a plan also contravenes efforts to reduce carbon emissions and undermines environmental 

principles by making economic and infrastructure development dependent on increased vehicle 

use. 

 

Commission on Devolution in Wales 

As stated in our response to the Commission on Devolution in Wales, FSB Wales wishes to see 

full and unequivocal support from the UK and Welsh Governments for the tax and borrowing 

recommendations proposed by the Commission on Devolution in Wales (‘Silk Commission’) in 

order to address the issue of funding of major infrastructure projects.  We are also of the opinion 

that clarity, transparency, and ultimately accountability are at the heart of these 

recommendations.  We urge an imminent response from the UK Government to this Commission 

and note that the delay already apparent in this respect is causing confusion, obfuscation and 

general uncertainty.  Such a state of affairs is detrimental to business, potentially limiting 

infrastructure investment in Wales and generally liable to compound the historic poor 

performance of the economy of Wales. The current state of impasse between the Welsh 

Government and the Wales Office cannot continue. We are also patently aware that the need to 

improve elements of infrastructure in Wales is likely to require financial support from the UK-

wide budget as is the accepted case for rail electrification. 

 

 

Wales and UK collaboration 

It is vital that decisions about major cross-border infrastructure projects are undertaken 

collaboratively between the Welsh and UK Governments and not in isolation by either.  There is 

clear evidence that in terms of projects such as the electrification of the main line to Swansea 

and in the very welcome commitment to electrification of the Valleys line that cooperation and 

collaboration can only benefit the communities of Wales. However, in reflecting on the course of 

the recent Commission on Devolution in Wales, we cannot conclude that future collaboration 

can be taken for granted.  On a practical note, we wish to see greater involvement of the Welsh 

Government with Infrastructure UK with the aim of integrating the Wales elements into a UK-

Tudalen 58



 

 

wide plan reflecting the UK’s long-term infrastructure priorities.  While major projects would 

benefit from both management and investment at a UK level, FSB Wales does not feel that this is 

incompatible with decisions being ultimately made by those most likely to have a detailed 

understanding. Currently, we feel that in the case of the M4 and the Severn Crossings this means 

decisions should rest with the Welsh Government.  However, given recent announcements on 

the prospective use of tolls, it is clear that this is a qualified position.  

 

Ultimately, FSB Wales seeks clarity on the future of the revenue from the Severn Crossings and 

the UK Government’s response to the Commission on Devolution in Wales.  Without this, we fear 

that the ongoing discussions around such significant projects will continue to be mired by 

confusion and poor thinking. 

   

 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

Janet Jones 

Wales Policy Chair 

Federation of Small Businesses 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 59



 

 

 
               

WALES OFFICE       SWYDDFA CYMRU 

1 Cleeve House 1 Tŷ Cleeve 

Lambourne Crescent Cilgant Lambourne 

Llanishen Llanishen 

Cardiff Caerdydd 

CF14 5GP CF14 5GP 

  

Tel/Ffȏn: 029 2074 7406   E-mail/E-bost: admin.wales@fsb.org.uk 

Fax/Ffacs: 029 2074 7595 Website/Safle We: www.fsb.org.uk 

 
 
 

 

 

Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AM 

First Minister 

Welsh Government 

5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel 

Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 

09 September 2013 

 

 

Dear First Minister, 

 

Severn Crossings tolls and proposed M4 relief road 

 

During recent weeks and months there has been considerable speculation over the future of the 

tolls on the Severn Crossings, the M4 relief road and the much awaited response by the 

Secretary of State for Wales to the recommendations made by the Commission on Devolution in 

Wales. As a result our Policy Unit has discussed each of these issues in isolation and within the 

context of the wider debate on infrastructure, fiscal autonomy and the current plan for economic 

development.  

 

The Welsh Policy Unit of the Federation of Small Businesses has engaged wholeheartedly with all 

these policy considerations and in the interests of transparency and with a desire to ensure 

clarity and I have the pleasure in enclosing on their behalf a copy of the FSB Wales 

correspondence with the Secretary of State for Wales, the Right Honourable David Jones MP. 

 

Our letter makes three main points: 

 

· The level of tolls levied on vehicles using either of the Severn Crossings should decrease 

at the earliest opportunity in order to remove a barrier to cross border trade and 

economic growth. It also points out that in our opinion the future toll revenue is an 

insufficient and unreliable source upon which to predicate borrowing for infrastructure; 

Tudalen 60



 

 

 

· The letter explains that FSB Wales accepts the need to maintain tolls to fund the 

maintenance of the Crossings but that any future tolls should be limited solely to covering 

the costs of maintenance and specifically those costs directly associated with maintaining 

the Severn crossings and not the ordinary costs associated with maintaining the 

highways. We also point out that we are currently of the opinion that the management of 

the tolls should be devolved to Wales; 

 

· The UK Government’s delay in responding to the first part of the Commission on 

Devolution in Wales is in our opinion causing uncertainty and having a negative impact on 

the Welsh economy. 

 

 

During our participation at the Council for Economic Renewal we have been assured that toll 

income will not be used to fund an M4 relief road, and are keen to reiterate our support for the 

principle of borrowing powers being extended directly to the Welsh Government. This clearly 

requires alternative sources of revenue and you will no doubt be aware that our submission to 

the Silk Commission has supported this.  

 

In addition in our response to the UK Government’s consultation on the future of Stamp Duty 

Land tax that we once again have lent our support to the call for further devolution of powers to 

the Welsh Government. We are mindful that your government has accepted the principle of the 

full and complete devolution of Non Domestic Rates to Wales in response to the Non Domestic 

Rates review. 

 

My colleagues and I look forward to hearing positive developments in respect of the future of 

devolution in Wales that help resolve the current state of impasse. We would also appreciate 

your response to the question of toll income from the Severn Crossings should its administration 

be devolved to Wales. 

 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

Janet Jones 

Wales Policy Chair 

Federation of Small Businesses 

 

 

Tudalen 61



NAfW�Environment and Sustainability Committee 
Review of M4 Proposals� �

Sewta response 1�

1. Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the National Assembly for Wales 

Environment and Sustainability Committee review of the M4 Corridor Enhancement 

Measures. We are pleased to provide our views on the process and proposals to 

date.  

2. Sewta is the alliance of local authorities charged with developing transport policy and 

delivering transport projects on behalf of the 10 local authorities in South East Wales 

and their partners, both in the transport industry and in organisations representing 

users’ interests.  

3. Sewta’s membership includes the local authorities of Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, 

Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taff, 

Torfaen and the Vale of Glamorgan. Partners are the Confederation of Passenger 

Transport, Arriva Trains Wales, Network Rail, Bus Users UK, Passenger Focus and 

Sustrans. Sewta works closely with the Welsh Government.  

4. The M4 Motorway is a key element of the national and regional transport network, 

with a significant influence on travel patterns and economic performance. 

Accordingly, Sewta places great importance on engagement in the process to review 

existing provision and address known issues. 

5. For the purposes of our response we have identified two distinct elements in the M4 

proposals consultation and engagement processes: 

A. Original schemes consultation June and July 2012 (four highway  options 

comprising, widening existing M4, two options to revise the Southern Distributor 

Road, and a new dual carriage way to the south of Newport, with common public 

transport elements); and 

B. Revised Scheme published 23rd September 2013 (3 highway options to the south 

of Newport) 

6. The reason for this distinction is that there are significant differences each element in 

terms of Sewta engagement and the proposals themselves. 

The Original Scheme 

7. Sewta was an active member of the M4 CEM consultation group, attending a serious 

of meetings facilitated by the consultants. Initial proposals did not include adequate 

regard to the role and potential of public transport in relieving congestion at key 

junctions and facilitating regional movements. Increased use of alternative modes 

would reduce pressure on existing assets and assist achievement of environmental 

targets. Sewta considered a holistic approach to consider all modes of transport 

along the corridor an essential element of the M4 CEM project scope.  

Tudalen 62



NAfW�Environment and Sustainability Committee 
Review of M4 Proposals� �

Sewta response 2�

8. Following discussions, further work was undertaken by the consultants to identify a 

series of public transport measures, which were included in the public consultation 

exercise. 

9. There was also a concern that some of the highway options as proposed would have 

a negative impact on the transport network in Newport itself. In particular the closure 

of some junctions, whilst assisting the flow of traffic on the line of the M4 itself, would 

increase congestion on the approaches. There are a number of locations already 

designated Air Quality Management Areas, and there was a concern existing air 

quality issues would be exacerbated. 

10. Following approval at the July 2012 Sewta Board meeting, a written response was 

submitted to the first formal M4 CEM consultation, which outlined a number of 

concerns (full response contained in Appendix A). These are summarised as: 

a. The body of information available as part of the consultation constrained the 
conclusiveness of the response.  

b. Data currency – much of the data was several years old, and was unlikely to 
reflect current trends; 

c. Scope of Modelling – limited information available on the implications of the 
alternative options proposed on transport networks beyond the boundaries of the 
study area; 

d. Option Appraisal – key concerns regarding the accuracy of the conclusions 
reached; 

e. Appraisal of Public Transport Alternatives – the study made only limited use of a 
wide body of available information, which would have generated a more robust 
appraisal of the contribution achievable from public transport investment. 

11. The Welsh Government then undertook further public consultation regarding the 

Strategic Environmental Assessment, Health Impact Assessment and Equality 

Impact Assessments. 

12. Following Sewta Board approval, a further response was submitted to the Welsh 

Government consultants (Appendix B). In summary, key concerns were: 

a. The geographical scope doesn’t fully consider the regional impact of 

measures 

b. The contribution of existing public transport assets to achieve scheme 

outcomes was not adequately considered 

c. Proposals didn’t take account of the requirement to provide appropriate 

infrastructure to support and facilitate behavioural change 

d. The impact appraisal contained a number of anomalies 

13. Each of our responses outlines a number of concerns regarding the scope, data and 

appraisal of the scheme. 

Tudalen 63



NAfW�Environment and Sustainability Committee 
Review of M4 Proposals� �

Sewta response 3�

B – Current Scheme Proposals 

14. Following consideration of the original consultation proposals, revised proposals 

have been developed. These were publically released for consultation on the 23rd

September 2013, with Sewta being invited to respond.  

15. Sewta has not been actively engaged in the development of these revised proposals; 

therefore this is the first opportunity to fully consider them. The timescale is 

commensurate with the cycle of Sewta Board and Directorate meetings; however 

there is a considerable amount of information to be considered, which presents a 

challenge to fully appraise the proposals in the timescale. 

16. Whilst our full response is being prepared, there is an initial concern that the 

separation of the public transport elements from the M4 project and removes 

consultation upon it, removes the commitment of the original proposals to provide 

additional public transport provision to reduce dependence on the private car and 

contribute to Welsh Government and Sewta climate change objectives. We will 

provide a copy of our formal response, once available. 

17. Given the substantial revision to the proposed scheme and the removal of public 

transport elements, our previous consultation response represents the most up-to-

date assessment in the public domain of the role of non-highway options to delivering 

scheme outcomes. It is disappointing that, in the current consultation, consultees are 

not able to offer views on the full range of transport alternatives available. 

18. In summary, whilst Sewta fully supports measures to improve the transport network 

to support economic development and social inclusion, there is a concern that the 

current proposals underplay the potential of alternative modes to contribute towards 

these objectives. It is therefore very difficult for consultees to offer rounded advice on 

the most appropriate mix of transport investment to achieve economic and 

environmental objectives while delivering value for money. 

�

Tudalen 64



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

Appendix A 

M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Programme�– Consultation 

Sewta Response  

About Sewta 

1. Sewta is the alliance of local authorities charged with developing transport policy and 

delivering transport projects on behalf of the 10 local authorities in South East Wales and their 

partners, both in the transport industry and in organisations representing users’ interests. 

2. Sewta’s membership includes the local authorities of Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, Caerphilly, 

Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Torfaen and the Vale of 

Glamorgan. Partners are the Confederation of Passenger Transport, Arriva Trains Wales, 

Network Rail, Bus Users UK, Passenger Focus and Sustrans. Sewta works closely with the 

Welsh Government. 

3. Sewta welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Welsh Government’s consultation on the M4 

CEM Programme. Sewta’s response draws heavily on the Regional Transport Plan, which is the 

statutory Transport Plan for South East Wales. It was approved by Sewta in March 2010, and has 

been endorsed by the Welsh Government. 

Sewta’s Consultation Response 

4. Having been prepared by the regional transport consortium, this response is driven primarily 

from a regional perspective. Individual authorities will be responding from their own perspectives, 

and will address concerns of a more local nature. Every effort has been made to respond fully to 

the consultation questions. However, the body of information available as part of this consultation 

has constrained the conclusiveness of this response. These issues are dealt with in more detail in 

the body of the response. Key concerns include the following: 

1. Data currency – much of the data is several years old, and is unlikely to reflect current 
trends; 

2. Scope of Modelling – there is little information available on the implications of the 
alternative options proposed on transport networks beyond the boundaries of the study 
area; 

3. Option Appraisal – there are key concerns about the accuracy of the conclusions 
reached; 

4. Appraisal of Public Transport Alternatives – the study has made only limited use of a wide 
body of available information, which would have generated a more robust appraisal of the 
contribution achievable from public transport investment. 

Consultation Questions 

Question 1a: In your opinion, which of the transport related problems listed are the most 

important for the Welsh Government to address with the M4 CEM programme?  

Tudalen 65



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

Question 1b: Would you like to make any other comments on the traffic related problems 

which should be addressed by the M4 CEM programme? 

5. The consultation document lists 17 transport-related problems. It invites respondents to 

prioritise a maximum of four. Within the list of problems there are some general issues that apply 

to the whole corridor, whilst some are location specific. Those considered to be most pertinent at 

a regional level (shown in bold below) are identified in this response for prioritisation:  

Capacity 
1. A greater volume of traffic uses the M4 around Newport than it was 

designed to accommodate, resulting in regular congestion at peak times 
over extended periods. 

2. The M4 around Newport is used as a convenient cross town connection for local 
traffic, due to insufficient local road capacity. 

3. HGVs do not operate efficiently on the motorway around Newport. 
4. There is insufficient capacity through some of the junctions (e.g. 3 lane capacity 

drops to 2 lane capacity). 
5. The 2-lane Brynglas tunnels are a major capacity constraint. 
6. The M4 cannot cope with increased traffic from new developments. 

Resilience 
7. Difficulties maintaining adequate traffic flows on the M4 and alternative highway 

routes at times of temporary disruption; alternative routes are not able to cope 
with M4 traffic. 

8. The road and rail transport system in and around the M4 corridor is at increasing 
risk of disruption due to extreme weather events. 

9. When there are problems on the M4, there is severe disruption and 
congestion on the local and regional highway network. 

10. The M4 requires essential major maintenance within the next 5-10 years; this will 
involve prolonged lane and speed restrictions, thus increasing congestion 
problems. 

11. There is insufficient advance information to inform travel decisions when there is a 
problem on the M4. 

Safety 
12. The current accident rates on the M4 between Magor and Castleton are higher 

than average for UK motorways. 
13. The existing M4 is an inadequate standard compared to modern design 

standards. 
14. Some people's driving behaviour leads to increased accidents (e.g. speeding, 

lane hogging, unlicensed drivers). 
Sustainable Development 

15. There is a lack of adequate sustainable integrated transport alternatives for 
existing road users. 

16. Traffic noise from the motorway and air quality is a problem for local residents in 
certain areas. 

17. The existing transport network acts as a constraint to economic growth and 
adversely impacts the current economy. 

Key Problems 

6. The key problems are clearly the congestion, safety and maintenance issues of the current M4 

around Newport. The main underlying cause of the overload of the M4 is that not enough 

journeys are made using alternatives. For many existing road users along this motorway section, 

Tudalen 66



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

there is a current lack of adequate sustainable integrated transport alternatives. Many of the 

journeys are local journeys, and these would be the journeys with the greatest potential for modal 

shift were adequate alternatives available. 

Rail Alternatives  

7. In terms of lack of alternatives, there is in particular a lack of convenient accessibility to the rail 

network for local journeys in proximity to Newport. While the rail lines are in place, there are few 

stations on the network around Newport, and the frequency and convenience of services to cater 

for local journeys is restricted. In the case of the line from the Ebbw Valley to Newport, there are 

no services at all. This limited sub-regional network of rail services linking the journey to work 

area with Newport, puts great pressure on the M4 for many local journeys. The success of the 

Ebbw Valley line to Cardiff illustrates the potential to remove car journeys from critical areas of 

the highway network where an attractive alternative is provided. 

The Local and Regional Highway Network 

8. The consultation document highlights the proliferation of congestion issues that affect 

Junctions 26, 27 and 28. These cause considerable impacts on strategic access routes, including 

the A48 from St Mellons, the A468 from Caerphilly, the A467 / B4591 from Cross Keys, the 

A4051 from Cwmbran and the A4042 from Pontypool. However, congestion at these junctions is 

also a major cause of congestion on the M4 itself. Local and regional traffic is a major contributor 

to congestion on the M4, but equally, congestion on the M4 is a major contributor to congestion 

on the local and regional road network. This underlines the limitations of seeking to address the 

problems of the M4 without equally seeking to tackle issues on the adjoining network. There is a 

serious risk that enhancing motorway capacity without addressing local network issues will 

exacerbate existing problems on the local network. 

  

Bus Alternatives 

9. These concerns and risks are particularly pertinent to the bus network. Congestion on the 

motorway and at its junctions has a seriously adverse effect on journey times and reliability for 

bus passengers, and restrains the attractiveness of the bus as a modal alternative for local and 

regional journeys. The bus corridors from Cardiff, Cross Keys and Cwmbran are recognised 

within the Regional Transport Plan as strategic corridors for bus priority, and any measures 

proposed through the M4 CEM programme affecting junctions 26, 27 & 28, and adjoining 

junctions on the local and regional road network, need to be able to demonstrate their benefits for 

bus users.  

Smarter Choices 

10. Given the extent of local journeys on the M4, measures like the completion of the strategic 

cycle network for Newport, the introduction of personalised travel planning, and the inclusion of 

Newport within the Sustainable Travel Centres programme, can all contribute to increasing the 

availability of sustainable travel alternatives to the car. It is surprising that the issue of the carbon 

emissions generated by users of the M4 is not identified as one of the strategic problems which 

the programme needs to address, given the recognition of carbon emissions as one of the 

strategic priorities within the Wales Transport Strategy. 

Sewta Metro Plus 

11. The facilitation of economic growth is a key function of the strategic transport network. The 

creation of a networked City Region which harnesses the economic potential of the M4 corridor 

Tudalen 67



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

requires accessibility throughout the region. An effective M4 CEM Programme has the potential to 

stimulate the economic growth of the region. The development of public transport alternatives, 

including the Sewta Metro Plus concept, will help to reduce dependency on the M4, whilst also 

facilitating economic development. It will be essential that the Metro proposition embraces the 

whole Newport journey to work area, in order to play its full role in helping to alleviate the 

problems of the M4. 

Traffic generated by New Developments 

12. A key contributor to the levels of existing congestion on the M4 has been the extent of new 

high intensity development which has taken place close to motorway junctions, particularly in 

generating local journeys. It will be essential as part of the M4 CEM programme that measures 

are taken to provide strategic guidance to local planning authorities which inhibits further 

developments of this nature from gaining planning consent. 

The Wider Strategic Highway Network 

13. While the focus of the programme is the M4 between Magor and Castleton, there is a concern 

that the impacts of the enhanced traffic flows achieved by the proposed highway options, on 

highway networks beyond this length of the motorway, do not appear to have been modelled or 

evaluated. As well as the principal road network around Newport, there are also concerns at the 

potential impact on strategic junctions further east and west. Key issues will be the impact of 

increased flows on the 2-lane section at Jct 23 Magor, on J32, Coryton, and on the junctions on 

the A48 in Cardiff. Capacity improvements between Magor and Castleton are likely to increase 

the rate at which vehicles arrive at these junctions, exacerbating the ‘bottleneck’ effect, and 

constraining the overall benefits of the proposed enhancement measures. 

Data Currency 

14. The Sewta response is based on the information contained within the Consultation Document. 

However, we have fundamental concerns that the data utilised is five years old, and therefore is 

an unreliable basis on which to evaluate alternative options. It does not take account of the 

impact of M4 Making Better Use measures (including the Managed Motorway between junctions 

24 and 28) or the impact of increasing fuel prices and other factors on rates of road traffic growth. 

There is a pressing need for an update on the current position regarding key issues such as 

congestion, journey time / reliability and safety, before any decisions are taken to commit funding.  

Question 2a: In your opinion, which of the goals listed are the most important for the 

Welsh Government to achieve with the M4 CEM Programme?  

Question 2b: Would you like to make any other comments on the goals of the M4 CEM 

Programme? 

15. The consultation document lists 15 goals; a maximum of four should be prioritised. Those 

considered to be most pertinent at a regional level (shown in bold below) are identified in this 

response for prioritisation:  

Tudalen 68



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

1. Safer, easier and more reliable travel east-west in South Wales. 
2. Improved transport connections within Wales and to England, the Republic 

of Ireland and the rest of Europe on all modes on the international transport 
network. 

3. More effective and integrated use of alternatives to the M4, including other 
parts of the transport network and other modes of transport, for local and 
strategic journeys around Newport. 

4. Best possible use of the existing M4, local road network and other transport 
networks. 

5. More reliable journey times along the M4 Corridor.  
6. Increased level of choice for all people making journeys within the transport 

corridor by all modes between Magor and Castleton, commensurate with 
demand for alternatives. 

7. Improved safety on the M4 Corridor between Magor and Castleton.  
8. Improved air quality in areas next to the M4 around Newport. 
9. Reduced disturbance to people from high noise levels, from all transport modes 

and traffic within the M4 Corridor. 
10. Reduced greenhouse gas emissions per vehicle and/or person kilometre. 
11. Improved travel experience into South Wales along the M4 Corridor. 
12. An M4 attractive for strategic journeys that discourages local traffic use. 
13. Improved traffic management in and around Newport on the M4 Corridor. 
14. Easier access to local key services and residential and commercial centres. 
15. A cultural shift in travel behaviour towards more sustainable choices. 

Improved Strategic Transport Connections 

16. The goals of the M4 CEM Programme are generally aligned with those of the Sewta RTP 

and, subject to the comments below, are broadly supported. Given the strategic location of 

this section of the M4 Corridor, it has a critical part to play in improving strategic connectivity 

for the majority of the population of Wales. There is a need to link the goals more explicitly, 

however, to the social, economic and environmental goals of the Wales Transport Strategy. 

Sustainable Alternatives 

17. As the key underlying problem is a lack of sustainable alternatives, primary goals should 

focus on more effective availability and use of such alternatives. The M4 would then be able to 

cope better with its primary intended function of providing long-distance strategic connectivity. 

Access to Services 

18. Better access to local vital services, and especially centres of key settlements, is a core 

objective of the Wales Spatial Plan and the Regional Transport Plan. Given the scope of the M4 

CEM programme, improving accessibility to Newport City Centre needs to be seen as a key 

strategic goal.

Discouraging Local Traffic on the M4. 

19. In respect of goal 12, there is a concern that the local highway network already experiences 

significant congestion. Accordingly, the removal of ‘local’ movements from the M4 would be 

detrimental to the local highway network without appropriate mitigation measures and effective 

alternatives. 

Reduced Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Tudalen 69



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

20. There are major concerns at the way in which goal 10 is defined. At a time when 

organisations are being pressed to profoundly reduce absolute levels of greenhouse gas 

emissions, a goal of reducing them per vehicle or per person kilometre, could see options 

complying with that goal while substantially increasing absolute levels of emissions, as a result of 

increased traffic flows. The goal needs to be redefined as “Reduced greenhouse gas emissions,” 

and options need to be evaluated in terms of their compliance with this goal, or the extent to 

which they fail to comply. A goal thus defined should be one of the top priorities for the 

programme. 

Strategic Fit 

21. It is not clear from the consultation document, how the proposed goals fit with higher order 

strategic goals. It would therefore be helpful if the relationship between the proposed goals and 

the Wales Transport Strategy’s outcomes and key themes, the Wales Spatial Plan themes, and 

the WelTAG objectives is made more explicit. This could be captured in the form of policy linkage 

tables. 

Question 3a: Which of the public transport measures listed do you think would make 

the best contribution to relieving traffic on the M4? (Select all that apply, suggested 

priorities highlighted) 

Question 3b: To what extent do you think the public transport measure(s) you have 

selected will address the problems and achieve the goals you have chosen? 

Consultation Document Public Transport Proposals 

22. The consultation document includes the provision of a package of public transport measures, 

worth £300m of capital investment, and a further £200-300m in ongoing support over 60 years. 

These are: 

• Additional mainline train services between Swansea, Cardiff, Newport and Bristol; 

• Additional train services on local routes; 

• More stations with park and ride facilities; 

• More bus/train connecting services; 

• Additional express bus/coach services between Cardiff, Newport and Bristol; 

• Additional local bus services around and across Newport. 

23. The document advises that all that apply should be identified. Clearly all of these could make 

a contribution to relieving traffic on the M4. Furthermore, if these measures were implemented 

together as a package then their effect would be much greater than for any one measure on its 

own. However, it is evident that the range of measures evaluated is limited and is indicative only, 

and the level of evaluation and information provided on each element is superficial. Neither the 

assessment of the package costs nor of its benefits is robust, and as a result any comments upon 

it will be of limited value. Accordingly, it is not possible to assess the merits of the public transport 

proposals against those of the highway infrastructure proposals. However, it is difficult to 

understand how the package of public transport measures is assessed, in the appraisal of 

options, as making a lesser contribution to the effective use of alternatives than that of two of the 

highway options. 

Tudalen 70



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

24. The proposed package of public transport measures misses the opportunity to significantly 

enhance the regional public transport network, which will assist better utilisation of existing 

assets. It is noted that the public transport measures is described as outside current funding 

commitments. An integrated package of measures is needed for the public transport measures to 

provide a credible set of alternative options for journeys.  

Public Transport Modal Share 

25. The consultation document indicates that a review of the public transport investment package 

set out in para 21 above concluded that it could reduce traffic on the M4 around Newport by 

about 3%, and a modal share increase for public transport from 7% to 11%. Accordingly, it argues 

that the investment in public transport could not alone achieve the goals of the M4 programme. 

26. This is difficult to accept, given the indicative nature of the package. With the public transport 

modal share experienced in other comparable city-regions, it would be possible for a public 

transport network such as that proposed in the Regional Transport Plan and the Regional Rail 

Strategy, and captured in the Metro proposals, including electrification, to lead to a step change in 

behaviour, contributing more substantially to the M4 CEM Programme goals. 

Comprehensive Public Transport Alternatives 

27. Overall, while the consultation document makes reference to electrification of the Great 

Western Mainline and the Valley Lines network, and existing National Transport Plan aspirations, 

there is a strong case for a more comprehensive package of public  transport alternatives to be 

considered.  While these will also contribute to a set of regional transport planning objectives 

which are wider than those of the M4 CEM Programme, there is the potential to achieve better 

value for money by taking an approach which integrates regional and M4 CEM programmes. 

Regional Public Transport Proposals 

28. The Regional / Metro public transport proposals, which should be considered in terms of their 

potential collectively to play a major role in achieving the goals of the M4 CEM Programme, 

include:  

• Strategic bus priority corridors on the routes from Cardiff, Blackwood, Newbridge and 
Pontypool into Newport; 

• A new bus interchange in Newport; 

• New rail services from Ebbw Vale and Abertillery into Newport,  

• Enhanced rail frequencies from Abergavenny, Chepstow, and Bristol into Newport.  

• New rail stations at St Mellons, Coedkernew, Ebbw Vale Town, Crumlin, Pye Corner, 
Caerleon and Llanwern, mostly with park & rides 

• New rail park & ride schemes at existing stations at Abergavenny, Pontypool, Chepstow 
and Severn Tunnel Junction 

• A fully electrified rail network 

• Faster journey times, full timetable and ticketing integration, and better information, to 
enable seamless travel from the point of view of the passenger. 

Public Transport Deliverability 

29. Many of these proposals have advanced well beyond concept and feasibility study stages, to 

include business case development, preliminary design and public consultation. Their costs, 

benefits and deliverability are generally well understood. Some schemes are already within 

funding programmes, and others in implementation. Some will be fundable through external 

Tudalen 71



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

funding programmes. It is disappointing that this level of knowledge has not been fully accessed 

to provide a meaningful public transport package for evaluation as part of this programme. 

Question 4a – 4d: To what extent do you think Highway Infrastructure Options A, B, C 

and D will address the problems and achieve the goals you have chosen? 

Highway Option A 

30. Highway Option A will provide an additional crossing of the River Usk, resulting in substantial 

additional highway network capacity and resilience. The additional capacity is greater than in 

options B and C, both of which would utilise the existing A48 Bridge. The estimated cost of this 

option is £830m.  

31. In terms of providing improved long-distance connectivity this option would clearly have a 

major positive effect, especially if (as it appears in the consultation document) the new high 

quality road can be accessed at junctions 23 and 29 only. The assumption of no intermediate 

junctions may, however, be unrealistic, and these would add substantially to the costs. 

32. The impact on local and regional accessibility from this option needs further assessment. 

There are substantial capacity issues around junctions 26-28 and along the roads leading to 

these junctions, leading to congestion and negative effects on the bus system and the local 

environment. There is a concern that Option A, without an effective public transport package, 

would have limited benefit for these issues, although it is likely that some of the junction 

congestion currently experienced around Newport would migrate westward to junctions around 

Cardiff. It is also noted that the route would sever existing and proposed cycle routes, and 

mitigation measures would be needed. 

33. Implementation of Option A may offer the opportunity to implement bus priority measures in 

association with a fundamental review of the role of the existing M4. However, there is no 

evidence in the consultation document that these potential benefits have been considered in the 

evaluation.  

34. Overall, the road user benefits arising from Option A in providing extra road capacity will need 

to be evaluated against the Wales Transport Strategy key outcomes and the Sewta RTP 

objectives, as it has the potential to lead to a modal shift away from sustainable modes. There 

would be a need for countervailing measures promoting sustainable transport.  

35. It is noted that the WelTAG Appraisal of Option A assesses this scheme as having a 

neutral impact on greenhouse gas emissions. As with Options C and D, the statement in the 

appraisal that “it is not clear whether the additional road capacity would lead to an overall 

increase in emissions” is highly questionable. However, the estimated neutral impact arises 

from the inappropriate indicator used (see para 19 above). It is difficult to accept that this 

option would have an equivalent neutral impact on greenhouse gas emissions as Options B, 

C and D. The WelTAG appraisal needs to be revisited. 

Highway Option B 

36. Highway Option B would provide at-grade junction improvements along the existing Newport 

Southern Distributor Road (A48). The estimated cost of this option is £45m. While it would 

Tudalen 72



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

improve the performance of the corridor in times of severe problems on the existing M4, the 

signalisation of these junctions will not attract through traffic off the M4 or movements that join the 

motorway along junctions 25-28. Therefore this option is likely to have the least impact on 

achieving the broader goals and aims of the project. 

37. Furthermore, there is a concern that the implementation of at-grade measures to prioritise 

traffic on the A48 would be detrimental to local movements into the centre of Newport from the 

south and east, including cycleway links, and would increase severance effects. In order to avoid 

adverse effects on the reliability of local bus services that use these junctions, suitable bus 

priority measures would need to be included. 

38. The requirement to utilise junctions 24 and 28 will add pressure on these roundabouts, which 

are already heavily congested. The consultation document does not appear to show any 

enhancements to these junctions, so it is important to understand what mitigation measures will 

be employed, including measures to improve bus journey times and reliability, as these 

roundabouts are used by a number of regional bus services.  

39. There are a number of travel generators located on the east side of the SDR (including a 

number of schools and retail facilities). Given the predicted increase in vehicle flows, it would be 

imperative to provide safe routes to and from these facilities.  

40.  It is difficult to accept that this option would have an equivalent neutral impact on greenhouse 

gas emissions as Options A, C and D. 

Highway Option C 

41. Highway Option C is generally similar to option B, but with the provision of grade separated 

junctions. The estimated cost is £300m. In general, the route related issues identified under 

Option B will also apply to Option C.  

42. Of the two, Option C is a better option in terms of providing resilience and capacity 

improvement for through traffic as the grade separation will provide a more attractive route for 

strategic traffic. There is a concern, however, that these benefits will be constrained by the 

capacity of key interchanges at Junctions 28 and 24 without their modification, which would need 

to include bus priority measures.  

43. A further concern regarding this option is the impact of the grade separation on the local 

environment and transport network. It has the potential for adverse implications for adjoining 

communities. There would also be a need for the revised junction arrangements to provide bus 

priority, cycleway linkages and safer pedestrian routes to mitigate potential increases in traffic. 

44. As the option does provide some more substantial additional highway capacity, the concerns 

outlined in Option A (namely that these will lead to increases in road traffic without substantial 

mitigation measures) also apply. 

45. As with Options A and D, the statement in the appraisal that “it is not clear whether the 

additional road capacity would lead to an overall increase in emissions” is highly questionable. It 

Tudalen 73



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

is difficult to accept that this option would have an equivalent neutral impact on greenhouse gas 

emissions as Options A, B and D. 

Highway Option D 

46. Option D proposes the provision of a dual 4-lane motorway between junctions 24 and 29, 

along the existing M4 route. The estimated cost is £550m. This will provide a substantial increase 

in capacity along the current route and remove the current bottleneck at the Brynglas Tunnels, by 

providing an additional tunnel.  

47. The main drawback of this option is that the additional capacity of the M4 would lead to 

additional pressure on the routes leading to the motorway (i.e. A48, A468, A467, B4591, A4051 

and A4042) – and these are already suffering from congestion and negative environmental 

effects. Without expensive mitigation measures it is likely that congestion, noise, air pollution, etc 

will increase substantially along the M4 corridor and the routes leading to it. The reliability of the 

local / regional bus network would also require substantial bus priority investment.  

48. As with Option A, Option D would have a clear positive effect in terms of providing improved 

long-distance connectivity. Also as with Option A, the additional highway capacity will lead to a 

sustained overall increase in traffic, and knock-on effects on the local / regional highway network, 

and on roads and junctions towards Cardiff. A substantial investigation into such potential side-

effects is essential to understand the benefits and costs of this option. 

49. There is a concern that this option is the most difficult to construct, with a risk of reduced 

capacity and possible closure for significant periods.  

50. As with Options A and C, the statement in the appraisal that “it is not clear whether the 

additional road capacity would lead to an overall increase in emissions” is highly questionable. It 

is difficult to accept that this option would have an equivalent neutral impact on greenhouse gas 

emissions as Options A, B and C. 

Question 5: Have you any additional comments to make regarding how to address the 

travel related problems occurring in the M4 Corridor, Magor to Castleton? 

Funding 

51. Information in the consultation document on the deliverability of the alternative options is very 

limited. It is evident that, with the exception of Highway Option B, the scale of the funding 

required will present major challenges. Highway Options A, C & D are in the range £300m to 

£830m. The Welsh Government, with whom lead responsibility properly rests for the M4 CEM 

programme, will need to ensure that the programme represents value for money, and that all 

relevant funding programmes are brought into the scope of the programme. There will be a need 

for a wide range of stakeholders to also play a role, and closer partnership working will be 

needed. Funding sources beyond those which would conventionally be considered for investment 

of this nature will need to be identified. 

Delivering Progress in the Short to Medium Term 

52. However the funding challenges are addressed, the scale of the programme indicates that the 

lead in time for major highway options in particular is likely to be lengthy. There will be a need for 

Tudalen 74



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

measures to be taken in the interim which will help to address the situation where any increases 

in highway capacity will not be deliverable for a number of years. While demand management 

can play a role, and needs to be more effectively considered, investment in rail, bus, cycling and 

smarter choices programmes becomes not an option but a necessity. 

Aligning the M4 CEM Programme with Broader Transport and Land Use Planning 

53. It is important that the proposals for the M4 CEM Programme are effectively integrated with 

those for the broader region. The implications of the M4 CEM options for transport networks 

beyond the scope of the programme need to be fully understood. A key factor which also needs 

to be taken into account is the potential for changes in toll levels on the Severn Bridge, which 

could have profound implications for traffic flows and levels of congestion on the M4.  

54. There is also a pressing need to align the objectives of transport planning and spatial / land 

use planning along the M4 corridor. It will be essential in seeking to achieve lower congestion 

levels that new development is concentrated in locations which can be effectively accessed by 

public transport, and that further development in locations which would be heavily dependent on 

access by private car, particularly in close proximity to M4 junctions, is avoided. There is a case 

for a review of the guidance offered by Welsh Government Planning Policies to local planning 

authorities on their Development Plans, to reflect the goals of the M4 CEM Programme. Work on 

developing a regional planning framework should have similar regard to these goals. 

Summary of Key Comments 

1. Economic Growth - Enabling economic growth is a key function of the transport network. 
A networked City Region, which harnesses the potential of the M4 Corridor, requires 
accessibility throughout the region. An effective M4 CEM Programme can stimulate the 
economic growth of the whole region.

2. Key Problems – These are clearly the congestion, safety and resilience issues of the 
current M4 around Newport. For many existing road users along this motorway section, 
there is a lack of sustainable transport alternatives. Many journeys are local, and these 
would have the potential for modal shift were adequate alternatives available.

3. Programme Goals - The goals of the M4 CEM Programme are generally aligned with 
those of the Sewta RTP and, subject to the comments in this response, are broadly 
supported, although the definition of the carbon reduction goal is questioned. This section 
of the M4 Corridor, has a critical part to play in improving strategic connectivity for Wales. 

4. Congestion Impacts on the Wider Network - There is concern that the impacts of the 
enhanced traffic flows achieved by the proposed highway options, on highway networks 
beyond this length of the motorway, do not appear to have been modelled or evaluated. 
As well as the road network around Newport, there are also concerns at the impact on 
strategic junctions further west and east. Key issues will be the impacts on J32, Coryton, 
on the junctions on the A48 in Cardiff, and on the 2-lane section of the M4 at Jct 23 
Magor.

5. Public Transport Measures -There is a strong case for a more comprehensive package 
of public transport alternatives. Better value for money can be achieved by integrating 
regional and M4 CEM programmes. Many of the regional public transport proposals have 
advanced to design and public consultation. Their costs, benefits and deliverability are 
generally well understood. 

6. Highway Option A - In terms of providing improved long-distance connectivity, this option 
would have a major positive effect, especially if it can be accessed at junctions 23 and 29 
only. The assumption of no intermediate junctions may, however, be unrealistic, and these 
would add substantially to the costs.

Tudalen 75



Sewta Board 20th July 2012 – Item 13.5 
�

2013-10-06 Draft reposnse to environment�������������	�
�����
��������������
��

�

7. Highway Option B - This is likely to have the least impact on achieving the broader goals 
and aims of the project.

8. Highway Option C – This would perform better than Option B in terms of providing 
resilience and capacity improvement for through traffic. There is a concern, however, that 
these benefits will be constrained by the capacity of key interchanges at Junctions 28 and 
24 without further investment in them.

9. Highway Option D - The main transport drawback of this option is that the additional 
capacity of the M4 would lead to additional pressure on the routes leading to the 
motorway, and these are already suffering from congestion and negative environmental 
effects. Without expensive mitigation measures, congestion, noise, air pollution, etc would 
increase substantially along the M4 corridor and the routes leading to it.

10. Deliverability - Information on the deliverability of the alternative options is very limited. 
The scale of the funding required will present major challenges. Highway Options A, C & 
D are in the range £300m to £830m. The Welsh Government will need to ensure that the 
programme represents value for money. Funding sources will need to be identified 
beyond those which would conventionally be considered.

11. Investments in the Short to Medium Term - The lead in time for major highway options 
is likely to be lengthy. There will be a need for measures in the interim. While demand 
management can play a role, substantial investment in rail, bus, cycling and smarter 
choices programmes is a necessity. 

12. Regional Integration - The proposals for the M4 CEM Programme need to be effectively 
integrated with those for the broader region. The implications of the M4 CEM options for 
wider transport networks need to be fully understood. The potential for changes in tolls on 
the Severn Bridge, which could have profound implications for traffic flows and levels of 
congestion on the M4, will need to be taken into account.

13. Co-ordination with Land use Planning - It will be essential in seeking to lower 
congestion, that new development is concentrated where it can be effectively accessed by 
public transport, and that development in locations dependent on the car, particularly 
close to M4 junctions, is avoided.

14. Data Reliability - The body of information and appraisal available as part of this 
consultation is not adequate to enable conclusive decisions to be made.

�

�

Tudalen 76



�

�

Appendix B  

Sewta response to M4 CEM SEA, HIA and EqIA Consultation 

About Sewta  

1. Sewta is the alliance of local authorities charged with developing transport policy 
and delivering transport projects on behalf of the 10 local authorities in South East 
Wales and their partners, both in the transport industry and in organisations 
representing users’ interests.  

2. Sewta’s membership includes the local authorities of Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, 
Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taff, 
Torfaen and the Vale of Glamorgan. Partners are the Confederation of Passenger 
Transport, Arriva Trains Wales, Network Rail, Bus Users UK, Passenger Focus and 
Sustrans. Sewta works closely with the Welsh Government.  

3. Sewta welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Welsh Government's 
consultation on the M4 CEM Programme SEA, HIA and EqIA. Sewta’s response 
draws on the Regional Transport Plan, which is the statutory Transport Plan for 
South East Wales. It was approved by Sewta in March 2010, and has been 
endorsed by the Welsh Government.  

Sewta’s Consultation Response 

4. The following sections identify our comments regarding the Consultation document: 

SEA Objectives 

5. The importance of delivering a more carbon efficient transport with an increased 
emphasis on more sustainable modes is closely allied to the objectives of the Sewta 
Regional Transport Plan; therefore Sewta welcomes the amendment of SEA 
objective 2a to reduce the global level of transport related greenhouse gasses, 
replacing the per km/person criteria.  

Scope/geographical coverage 

6. Section 3.1.2 notes that the M4 CEM programme will have a wider geographical 
sphere of influence than the confines of the M4 between Magor and Castleton, 
including the potential to increase journeys in and around Cardiff. This has 
important ramifications for the regional transport network. Whilst it is appreciated 
that the majority of environmental impacts will be in and around the Newport area 
itself, there appears to be limited consideration of the impact or information related 
to those wider locations identified. 

Tudalen 77



�

�

 Policy context 

7. Sewta welcomes the inclusion of the Regional Transport Plan and Rail Strategy 
within the list of relevant policies, plans and programmes  

Baseline Information – Public Transport 

8. Whilst there is a range of information within this section, there are a number of 
notable omissions. There are a number of bus and coach services that utilise the 
M4 corridor within the study area. These provide a foundation to provide more 
sustainable alternatives – particularly for city centre to city centre type trips, or the 
leisure market (such as travel to an airport) where public transport can offer a 
credible alternative. Services include: 

• National Express Long Distance Coach Services 

201 - Route South Wales Bristol to Heathrow Gatwick Airports  

322 - Coaches between Nottingham, Leicester, Birmingham and South Wales 

508 - Route Swansea West Wales to London  

509 - Route Cardiff to London  

• First Group 

14 - Newport to Chepstow 

• Stagecoach in South Wales 

X3 – Cardiff – Pontypool – Abergavenny 

• Megabus (operated by Stagecoach) 

Cwmbran – Newport – Bristol – London 

Swansea – Cardiff – Bristol – London 

Cardiff Bus Network 

9. The SEA notes the potential impact of the M4 in Cardiff; therefore we would also 
highlight the presence of park and ride services, particularly the Pentwyn Facility 
that could intercept a percentage of city centre traffic emanating from the M4. This 
facility has also expanded to provide a park and ride facility servicing Heath 
Hospital. 

Cardiff Railway Network 

10. There are a number of rail freight movements within the study area. These are 
summarised in Appendix B of the Sewta Rail Strategy. We would also identify 
Wentloog Rail Freight Terminal as a key element of the rail network. 

Tudalen 78



�

�

Newport Bus Network 

11. The majority of the Newport Bus network is commercial, with limited infill by 
supported services. The X30 also calls at Heath Hospital to provide an alternative to 
sections of the M4 for some users. 

12. Shortcomings of the existing bus network include a lack of genuine ‘express’ buses, 
resulting in journey times greater than the private car. This is demonstrated by the 
success of the Ebbw Valley Line, which reduced the journey time by public transport 
between Ebbw Vale and Cardiff by half. This results in times competitive with the 
car and has removed a number of journeys at key congestion points on the M4, 
such as Junction 28, Tredegar Park. 

Car Share 

13. Although Sewta is responsible for administering the Sewta Car Share database, 
funding is provided by Welsh Government. We would also refer to the Cardiff 
Council Car Share database, which may intercept some M4 related journeys. 

Cycling 

14. In addition to the measures identified, National Cycle Network Route 4 also 
provides cycle links between Chepstow and Newport. The lack of a suitable, more 
direct cycle route between Newport and Cardiff is also a barrier to increased levels 
of cycling within part of the study area. 

Road Freight 

15. The use of the M4 by Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV) is a major influence on levels of 
environmental impact. The Wentloog Rail terminal provides an opportunity to 
consolidate freight for local distribution. For example Tesco utilise a rail service from 
Daventry to supply the Magor Distribution depot. 

Section 3.3.2.4 Key Issues 

16. The final bullet point in this section notes the replacement of private car use by 
more sustainable modes is required but dependent on behavioural change. We 
would also note that infrastructure and service provision to facilitate and influence 
such behavioural change is also required. 

Section 3.7.2.1 4th Paragraph 

17. This section notes monitoring has identified an improvement in the M4 safety record 
following the implementation of safety initiatives. However, the quantum of 
improvement needs to be recorded. 

Tudalen 79



�

�

3.7.2.2. Trends and future baseline 

18. We would question the relevance of crime and anti-social behaviour statistics in the 
context of the SEA. This would be relevant to the EqIA in terms of barriers to travel 
to more vulnerable social groups. 

3.12.2.1 

19. Tredegar Park House is now run by the National Trust 

Section 5.5, Table 8 

20. Within the ‘demand management’ and ‘Alternative travel modes and smarter 
sustainable choices’ we would also wish consideration being given to measures to 
reduce the need to travel such as home working and video/teleconferencing. 

21. Within the ‘Alternative travel modes and smarter sustainable choices’ category we 
would also include ‘provide better/promotion of public transport’ 

Assessment Table Comments 

Table 9 and 10 

22. M4 CEM SEA objectives 1 and 2a relate to goals of improving air quality and 
reducing transport related greenhouse gases. It is therefore disappointing there is 
no assessment of these attributes for the highway elements. Sewta is concerned at 
the omission of these elements as they need to be key considerations within the 
SEA. 

23. We also note table 10 has a neutral rating for public transport. This does not appear 
to incorporate improvements in emissions standards for public service vehicles, with 
an increasing number of vehicles in the fleet running at Euro 5 standard. 

Table 12 

24. Noise and vibration are key impacts for residents. We note no assessment has 
been undertaken for highway options A – C. We would also note, the SDR passes 
in close proximity to a number of residential areas that are likely to experience 
significant increases in noise and vibration. 

Table 13 

25. We would question the relative significance of the same rating for public transport 
and option D. Whilst there would be some impact arising from the construction of 
new public transport facilities, these are likely to be significantly less that the online 
widening of the M4 and construction of new tunnels at Brynglas and associated 
overbridges across the Usk. 

Tudalen 80



�

�

Table 14 

26. Sewta’s response to the M4 CEM consultation highlighted concerns that options B 
and C would increase severance for some communities – for example, Ringland 
and Pill. The creation of grade separated junctions will require significant land take 
and will require the construction of bridges and slip roads. This will result in 
significant severance for those communities and require appropriate pedestrian and 
cycle facilities to minimise the impact. 

Table 15 

27. The SEA identifies the positive impact of more sustainable modes on health. We 
would question the same overall rating being applied to Option A. 

28. Option B and C note there is likely to be an increase in vehicle flows on the SDR as 
movements transfer from the M4. The SDR is predominantly an urban highway, the 
majority of which is in close proximity to residential areas. We would therefore 
question the neutral rating applied to these options. 

Table 16 

29. The assessment for option D is slight adverse. Although the impact is likely to be 
lower than option A, it is likely to be significantly higher than option C, given the 
requirement to remove a significant amount of material from the Crindau Ridge. 

Table 23 – Mitigation measures 

30. Air quality– The use of alternative forms of propulsion (including public transport) 
should also be considered and referenced. For example the electrification of the 
South Wales Main Line and Valleys Lines will reduce emissions. The use of more 
sustainable modes will also provide a degree of mitigation. 

�

Tudalen 81



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

 

Env & SD Committee 

Welsh Government 

National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

18
th

 October 2013 

 

Dear Committee,  

CALL FOR WRITTEN EVIDENCE: M4 

 

I would like to thank you for holding an inquiry into this matter and also the opportunity to give 

evidence.   

 

I would like to take this opportunity to express our deep concern about the environmental, economic 

and social impact of the M4 ‘Relief’ road alternatively referred to as the Brynglas Tunnels bypass. We 

believe that this proposal is also contradictory to many Welsh Government commitments, policy and 

aspirations. Annex 1 gives more detail, however I have summarized our response below.  

 

A motorway option was ruled out by the previous One Wales Government due to financial and 

significant sustainability issues. These issues have not been resolved.  

Currently, the preferred route by the Welsh Government is a £1.2 billion motorway through the 

Gwent Levels Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and the River Usk Special Are for Conservation 

(SAC) (see Annex 2). However, there are more sustainable alternatives that would address the 

capacity issues at a fraction of the cost e.g. upgrading the A48 and linking it and the Llanerwern 

Steelworks road to the M4 (see Annex 3). This would cost approximately £380 million and have 

significantly fewer environmental or impacts upon communities. This is just one of a number of 

solutions including greater public transport initiatives such as the South Wales Metro and measures to 

reduce local traffic on the M4 which accounts for 40% of congestion.   

The new motorway proposed would cause significant loss of important and nationally and 

internationally protected habitats and species. This at a time when the Welsh Government has stated 

it is committed to halting the loss of biodiversity by 2020 and addressing the issues described in The 

State of Nature report. At the same time, the new motorway would significantly increase Wales 

greenhouse gas emission through promotion of car use and the significant amount of embedded 

carbon dioxide in 15 miles of concrete. 

 The ecosystem services that the Gwent Levels provide including flood protection is conservatively 

estimated at £67million per year and this new motorway would erode these services. 

The Welsh Government and some others state that the traffic problems at the brynglas tunnels 

discourage investors and impact the economy while a new motorway would solve all investment and 

current economic problems. However, no evidence for either claim has been presented. In fact, we 

believe the contrary will occur, that Newport will lose out economically as it gives another reason for 

people to bypass Newport. Like the recent news about the HS2, the Welsh Government should 

provide an independent, peer reviewed business case for the road that also assesses the winners and 

losers of this scheme. This report should also include an assessment of the loss of ecosystem services 

that the proposal would create. 

 

The proposals are also contradictory to a number of Welsh Government duty’s, policies or 

commitments such as  

- Putting sustainability at the heart of their decision-making processes  

- taking an ecosystem approach 

- halting the loss of biodiversity  

- tackling the causes of climate change and reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 3% 

 
 

Baltic House 

Mount Stuart Square 

Cardiff 

CF10 5FH 

 

Ffôn/Tel: 029 20480070 

 

E-bost/E-mail:  

jbyrne@wtwales.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mae Ymddiriedolaethau Natur 

Cymru yn Elusen Gofrestredig 

Rhif: 104567  

ac yn Gwmni wedi ei Chyfyngu 

gan Warant Rhif: 3032775 

 

Wildlife Trusts Wales is a 

Registered Charity: 104567  

and a Company Limited by 

Guarantee: 3032775 

Eitem 6

Tudalen 82



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

per year in areas of devolved control such as transport  

 

Therefore, with climate change, loss of biodiversity and challenging economic times being 

such a pressing issue, it would be a backwards step if the Welsh Government have chosen to 

back the worst option from an environmental, economic and social perspective. Choosing an 

alternative option(s) that are cheaper, more sustainable and don’t have detrimental 

impacts on the environment is just a no brainer!   

 

I hope that the Committee will ask the Ministers whose portfolios are impacted by this 

proposal, to give evidence such as planning, transport, tackling poverty, active travel, 

ecosystem services, health and sustainable development. 

 

I confirm that I am happy for this response to be made public and that I am happy to discuss 

this response in more detail with the committee.  

 

Yours 

 

 
 

 

James Byrne 

Living Landscapes Advocacy Manager  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 83



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

ANNEX 1 

CALL FOR WRITTEN EVIDENCE: M4 

 

1. Wildlife Trusts Wales (WTW) is the umbrella organisation for the six Wildlife Trusts in 

Wales – Brecknock, Gwent, Montgomeryshire, North Wales, Radnorshire and South 

and West Wales (hereafter referred to as the ‘Wildlife Trusts’) working together in 

partnership to achieve a common aims. The Wildlife Trusts collectively speak on 

behalf of more than 28,000 members and manage over 200 nature reserves, covering 

more than 6,000 hectares of prime wildlife habitat, from rugged coastline to urban 

wildlife havens.  

 

2. Wildlife Trusts strive for a Living Landscapes and Living Seas, recognising this as an 

inspirational end point where our environment, society, and economy coexist for the 

benefit of wildlife and people. We want to foster the connectivity that links our urban 

and rural areas, our freshwater and coast, our land and sea. We aim, along with our 

partners, to create; 

 

· ecologically functioning areas that can adapt to climate change; providing 

resilience and connectivity for wildlife,  

· access and enjoyment for people 

· a population that is inspired by the natural world and value our environment 

for the many ways in which it supports our quality of life; 

· a sustainable, low carbon contribution to the economy;  

· areas that provide a suite of essential ecosystem goods and services.  

 

3. Our interests therefore lie in people and communities, wildlife, and their interaction.  

 

Need 

 

4. We don’t believe that the Welsh Government has demonstrated  

- the need for a major new motorway or  

- that the motorway is the most sustainable or economically way to achieve additional 

capacity.   

 

5. The Welsh Government state that the traffic problems discourage investors and impact the 

economy while a new motorway (at a cost of £1.2 billon), would solve all investment and current 

economic problems. However, no evidence for either claim has been presented.  

 

6. In fact, we believe the contrary will occur, that Newport will lose out economically as it gives 

another reason for people to bypass Newport.. Like the recent news about the HS2, the Welsh 

Government should provide an independent, peer reviewed business case for the road that also 

assesses the winners and losers of this scheme. This report should also include an assessment of 

the loss of ecosystem services that the proposal would create (the Gwent Levels ecosystem 

services have been conservatively estimated at £67 million per annum).  

 

7. Notwithstanding the above, Wildlife Trusts Wales (WTW) does recognise that congestion M4 

congestion is an issue and that additional capacity is required. However, we are aware that there 

are several major opportunities to increase capacity in the pipeline. These include; 

 

- A rail strategy proposed by South East Wales Transport Authority (SEWTA) 

- Creation of a public transport hub at Cardiff Central 

- Electrification of the South Wales mainline 

- Cardiff Regional Metro  

- Additional capacity for east west road around Newport to relieve congestion    

- Active Travel Bill    

 

8. Allied to the above, research shows that car usage has fallen since 2006 and plateaued while rail 

usage has risen by 80% in the last 10 years and shows no sign of reducing (Prof Stuart Cole, Page 9, 

Tudalen 84



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

Business Section, Western Mail 2
nd

 October 2013)(Annex 3). Professor Stuart Cole CBE, one of 

Wales’ leading transport economics academics, also highlights a recent study by University 

College London that shows car usage by young and middle class males (the largest group 

numerically) has fallen.  

 

9. In addition, we are aware that 40% of the traffic on the M4 is local traffic. Therefore, the above 

strategies and alternatives could reduce local traffic allowing the current M4 to ease the disruption 

on long distance traffic.  

 

10. Therefore, the above raises considerable uncertainty about the need for such a major scheme that 

is contrary to many of the Welsh Governments plans, policies and legal requirements (see below) 

such as their sustainable development duty or duty to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 3% per 

annum.  

 

Environmental Impacts 

 

Background 

 

11. The Gwent Levels is one of the largest surviving areas of ancient grazing marshes and 

reen (drainage ditch) systems in Britain.  It is the largest area of its kind in Wales, of 

acknowledged UK-wide significance for its wildlife and archaeology.  The proximity of the 

site to the internationally important Severn Estuary and River Usk add further value to 

this wetland complex.  

 

12. The designation of these Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) is primarily as 

representatives of grazing marsh / reen habitat (“Gwent Levels” sites), with Magor 

Marsh having additional significance for its fen vegetation.  In addition, the Levels also 

qualify as SSSI on the basis of their invertebrate assemblages, with significant plant 

species, otters, water voles and breeding birds also being additional qualifying features. 

 

13. The River Usk is designated as a Special Area for Conservation (SAC) under European 

legislation. The main features of European importance are the river’s migratory and 

resident fish species, including twaite and allis shad, sea, river and brook lamprey, 

Atlantic salmon and bullhead. Other species features of the SAC are the water crowfoot 

beds and the European otter which breeds along its banks and hunts for fish in the river 

and its tributaries. See Annex 2. 

 

14. It has been estimated that around 4000 ha of the Gwent Levels have already been lost 

through industrial, housing and infrastructure development.  

 

Impact 

 

15. The motorway would have a significant impact upon the nationally important wetlands known as 

the Gwent Levels. The motorway would cut through 4 of the Gwent Levels SSSIs and the River 

Usk SAC. The proposal would condemn 5 miles of the SSSI under the footprint of the 

development and much more subject to likely pollution events. However, the CEM analysis by 

ARUP originally had the impact on biodiversity as ‘medium’ negative affect, only when repeatedly 

challenged, did they acknowledge that this would be a major negative impact.  

 

16. This development is being proposed at a time when the Government has committed itself to 

addressing the causes of the failure to halt the loss of biodiversity in 2010 and addressing the 

issues raised in the State of Nature. This development will only add to that loss. 

 

17. The motorway would also significantly increase the Welsh Government’s carbon footprint 

through encouraging more traffic and the significant embedded carbon in motorway 

construction. The latter was not included in the ARUP calculations when assessing the greenhouse 

gas impacts. There assessment also was based on the assumption that, ‘in the future, cars will be 

greener and emit less carbon dioxide’ (ARUP CEM team member, pers com). Even if these future 

cars, which we assume means electric cars, were immediately bought by the populous, this logic 

Tudalen 85



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

fails to include the emissions from the source of the electric, e.g., power stations. 

 

Ecosystem Services  

 

18. The wetlands are incredibly valuable, based on a conservative estimate from the UK National 

Ecosystem Assessment, the Gwent Levels provide up to £670m per year in ‘ecosystem service’ 

benefits. These benefits would be significantly eroded by the presence of a motorway and we are 

concerned that, thus far, they have not been factored into any cost/benefit analysis of the scheme 

e.g. increased flooding., health issues
1
.  

 

Alternatives  

19. A new motorway, was ruled out by the previous One Wales Government, due to financial and 

significant sustainability issues. These issues have not been resolved.  

20. However, there are a number of sustainable much lower cost alternatives to a relief road which is 

estimated to cost £1.2 billion and not be ready until 2033. Alternatives include  

- a rolling  programme of upgrades to the A48   

- linking the A48 up with the Llanwern Steelworks road  

- junction closures on the M4 in order to reduce the significant local traffic (40%) 

from joining long distance traffic.  

21. The A48 upgrades would cost approximately £380m and be ready in a matter of 3-5 

years as most of the land is owned by Welsh Government. This would add additional 

capacity to the road infrastructure and help alleviate congestion around Newport. The 

logical conclusion of those improvements would be increased road capacity thus 

addressing the Brynglas bottleneck.  

22. This would cost less and take less time to complete than an M4 Motorway, and also 

leave more investment to spare for integrated transport projects elsewhere in Wales 

such as those mentioned above. These other investments, such as South Wales Metro, 

would be better for the economy, jobs, health, social inclusion
2
 and sustainability or in 

other words, a ‘win-win’. 

23. The One Wales Government set out a number of improvements including some of the 

above in 2009. However, these plans have not been given time to work such as using the 

Llanwern Steetworks road.  

24. Professor Stuart Cole CBE, one of Wales’ leading transport economics academics is about 

to publish an independent report looking at the economics of the Governments 

preferred route and alternatives. The report, to be published jointly by the Institute of 

Welsh Affairs and the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport – Cymru Wales, will 

be an economic and transport analysis of additional capacity associated with the M4 

corridor.  This report highlights many of the issues above and advocates for additional 

capacity via A48 and Llanwern Steel works (Professor Stuart Cole, pers com).  

25. These alternatives protect the unique environment of the Gwent Levels but don’t cost the 

earth.  

26. We strongly urged the Minister for Economy, Science and Transport to seriously consider 

all options within Welsh Government’s sustainable development duty and the ecosystem 

approach. We requested a meeting with the Minister to discuss our concerns but no 

meeting was forthcoming.  

Consultation Process 

 

27. WTW believes that the consultation process has been heavily biased towards the 

Governments preferred option. For example, it significantly downplayed the undoubted 

adverse impacts from the M4 Relief Road and using incorrect, out of date and partial 

                                                 
1
 http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/corporate/technical-note-20-what-are-the-main-health-impacts.pdf 

2
 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-20602687  

Tudalen 86



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

information. 

 

Policy Contradictions 

 

28. The Welsh Government has a number of plans, programmes and policies that contradict its 

preferred option, for example,  

- Sustainable Development – The Government of Wales Act put Sustainable 

Development at the heart of devolution. The Welsh Government’s Programme for 

Government reinforces the importance of sustainable development’s place as the 

core principle in defining the best development path for Wales. In addition, it 

commits to ensuring that all the Government’s policies and programmes reflect 

this central commitment to sustainable development. This duty places 

sustainability at the heart of their decision-making processes
3
 

- Ecosystem Approach – The Welsh Government stated “in the light of emerging 

evidence on ecosystem health, in September 2010 the Natural Environment 

Framework, ‘A Living Wales’ was launched, to update our approach and ensure we 

were addressing the environment as a whole and looking at all the benefits better 

management of our environment can bring… The main changes that this ecosystem 

approach will bring are… Changes in the way we deliver policy, make decisions and 

regulate the environment
4
. 

- Climate Change – The Welsh Government want to work “to tackle the causes and 

effects of climate change in our Climate Change Strategy for Wales. We have set out 

ambitious commitments to tackle the causes and consequences of climate change in 

a sustainable way in the Climate Change Strategy for Wales”
5
.Within this Strategy, 

the key target to cut greenhouse gas emissions by 3% per year in areas we control
6
 

- such as Transport.  

- Active Travel Bill - The Bill is intended to enable more people to walk and cycle and 

generally travel by non-motorised transport. The Welsh Government want to make 

walking and cycling the most natural and normal way of getting about. We want to 

do this so that more people can experience the health benefits, we can reduce our 

greenhouse gas emissions, and we can help address poverty and disadvantage. At 

the same time, we want to help our economy to grow, and we want to take steps 

that will unlock sustainable economic growth
7
. 

- State of Nature Response – the Minister Alun Davies stated “As Minister for the 

new natural resources and food portfolio, I am committed to ensuring that 

opportunities for the environment and the economy go hand in hand. Good 

environmental practice is good economic practice. I am concerned that too often 

we have put the two issues in opposition, both in the way in which we have 

regulated nature, and the way in which economic activity impacts on our 

environment... The Welsh Government is committed to delivering the European 

Union biodiversity strategy commitment of halting and, where possible, reversing 

the decline of biodiversity by 2020
8
. 

- Planning Policy Wales – Section 4.1.5 The main outcomes that we want to deliver 

are set out in our scheme and reflect our vision of sustainable development as a 

process of development that leads over time to a Wales that is economically, 

socially and environmentally sustainable (the process that leads to Wales becoming 

a sustainable nation); these are: Sustaining the environment  Wales has healthy, 

functioning ecosystems that are biologically diverse and productive and managed 

sustainably. A sustainable economy  A resilient and sustainable economy for Wales 

                                                 
3
 http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/121107ppw5chapter4en.pdf  

4
 http://wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2011/110615nat/?lang=en  

5
 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/?lang=en  

6
 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/publications/strategy/?lang=en  

7
 http://wales.gov.uk/legislation/programme/assemblybills/active-travel-bill/?lang=en  

8
 http://www.assemblywales.org/docs/rop_xml/130604_plenary_bilingual.xml#85930  

Tudalen 87



                                                                                       Gwarchod Bywyd Gwyllt ar gyfer y Dyfodol 
                                                                                                         Protecting Wildlife for the Future 

 

that is able to develop whilst reducing its use of natural resources and reducing its 

contribution to climate change
9
. 

 

These are but a few of the contradictions, and if called to give oral evidence I will expand, if it 

suites the Committee.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
9
 http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/121107ppw5chapter4en.pdf  

Tudalen 88



1 

 

 

 
Response to the Environment & Sustainability Committee request for evidence on the M4 

proposals around Newport 
October 2013 

 
RSPB Cymru is part of the RSPB, the country’s largest nature conservation charity. The RSPB works together 
with our partners, to protect threatened birds and wildlife so our towns, coast and countryside will teem with life 
once again. We play a leading role in BirdLife International, a worldwide partnership of nature conservation 
organisations. The RSPB has over 1 million members, including more than 51,000 living in Wales.  
 
We welcome the opportunity to respond to the Environment and Sustainability Committee’s examination of the 
Welsh Government’s proposal for an M4 motorway across the Gwent Levels. RSPB Cymru highly values the 
Gwent Levels due to its importance for wildlife and has identified the Levels as a Futurescape - an area for 
pursuing landscape scale conservation with multiple partners to deliver for wildlife on a large scale. We are 
therefore highly concerned by the Welsh Government’s proposal to build a new section of the M4 motorway 
through this highly valued area. 
 
In summary, we do not believe the Welsh Government has proven the need for a new road and advocate that in 
line with the Welsh Government’s own Climate Change Strategy and commitment to sustainable development it 
should invest in low carbon sustainable transport solutions to address congestion and, allow time for the 
measures already taken to take effect.  
 
If the Welsh Government is convinced a road solution is needed we advocate that the Welsh Government 
consider a reasonable alternative such as upgrading the current road infrastructure, ensuring no significant 
impact on the SSSIs.  

 
RSPB Cymru urge the Welsh Government to drop plans for a new road across the Gwent Levels and to 
realise the full value of the Levels to the wildlife and the people of Wales. 
 

 
1. Introduction 

The primary focus of this paper is on the ‘Consultation on a draft plan to improve the M4 around Newport’ 
launched on 20

th
 September 2013 along with the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Environmental 

Report 2013 and previous recent consultations. We are concerned that the consultations
1
 have been framed 

in a manner as that the outcome is preferable for the Black Route (the traditional M4 Relief Road), a new 
three lane motorway between junctions 23-29 of the M4. 
 
We are very concerned that there is no consideration within the Consultation document and SEA 
Environmental Report of low carbon sustainable alternatives. This approach is not consistent with Welsh 
Government policy or wider thinking on climate change or sustainable development. 
 
In this paper we bring to the attention of the Committee the deficiencies in the consultation documentation 
itself and highlight our concerns around the consultation process.  

 
 
2. Wildlife on the Gwent Levels 

The Gwent Levels is a fragile wetland ecosystem. It is statutorily-designated, consisting of seven SSSIs 

                                                
1
 M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Consultation (2012), SEA to the M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Consultation 
(2012), SEA Scoping Consultation (2013), Draft Plan and SEA Environmental Report (2013) 

 

Tudalen 89



2 

 

(Sites of Special Scientific Interest
2
). The area is designated for its scarce aquatic flora and fauna that live in 

the unique drainage ditches, known as reens, and grazing marsh habitat. The River Usk is also designated 
as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC) under European legislation for its migratory and resident fish 
species.  

 
The Levels are Wales’ largest and most important coastal and floodplain grazing marsh, a UK BAP Priority 
Habitat of acknowledged nature conservation concern

3
. The Levels are also important for landscape-scale 

nature conservation, being identified at a UK level as a “Futurescape”
4
 area for RSPB Cymru, and a “Living 

Landscape” area for the Wildlife Trusts. 
 

Stretching from east Cardiff to Chepstow the Levels are home to an astonishing array of special birds and 
other wildlife including lapwings, otters, water voles and one of the UK’s rarest bumblebees, the shrill carder 
bee. The area also hosts a number of specialist plants including frogbit, arrowhead and Wolffia – the 
smallest flowering plant in the world.  

 
Damage caused by a new road would not be limited to the direct loss of habitat where the road would be 
built. The new motorway would effectively cut the Levels in half, fragmenting habitat and creating a lethal 
barrier for wildlife. The lack of water movement between two sides and increased pollution from traffic runoff 
would dramatically affect these fragile wetlands over a large area.  

 
Furthermore, a new road through this nationally important area would make the land between it and Newport 
vulnerable to further development.  

 
All three road options considered in the consultation would cause major irreversible damage to the 
wildlife of the Gwent Levels. The path of both the preferred route and the ‘reasonable alternatives’ 
(purple and red routes) within the consultation would run directly through a number of protected 
areas, which are nationally important for their wildlife (including five SSSIs.) 

 
3. Consistency with Wider Welsh Government policy 

3.1. Sustainable Development 

We are very disappointed that the Welsh Government is proposing such an environmentally damaging 
project. We would expect a Government with sustainable development as its central organising 
principle to actively search for the least environmentally damaging way to address the issue it has 
identified. Sustainable development involves searching for creative solutions which enhance 
environmental, social and economic objectives, and we see no evidence of this approach being taken. 
Indeed the ‘goals’ of the consultation itself are all transport-related, there is no inclusion of sustainable 
development or environmental protection despite this being a highly designated area. 
 
Furthermore, we can see no evidence of the true value of the area that would be damaged by the 
options in the consultation being included in any assessment. In addition to its importance to wildlife - 
as recognised by national designations - the Gwent Levels provides valuable ‘ecosystem services’. 
Under the Natural Resources Management Programme the Welsh Government has been developing 
tools that should support better consideration of ecosystems in decision making; we can see no 
evidence that this work has been considered in developing the current consultation. 

 
3.2. Climate Change Strategy 

Climate change is the biggest mid to long term threat to biodiversity. We are therefore surprised and 
disappointed that the Consultation document does not make reference to the 2010 Climate Change 
Strategy for Wales. We would expect any proposal which includes the possibility of major new road 

                                                
2
 SSSIs - Magor Marsh SSSI, Redwick and Llandevenny SSSI, Whitson SSSI, Nash and Goldcliff SSSI, Gwent Levels St 
Brides SSSI, Rumney & Peterstone SSSI, Newport Wetlands SSSI 
3
 UK BAP priority habitats were those that were identified as being the most threatened and requiring conservation action 
under the UK Biodiversity Action Plan (UK BAP).  
4
 Futurescapes is the RSPB’s contribution to landscape-scale conservation, a growing movement among UK conservation 
groups to provide rich spaces for wildlife and people working in partnership with others beyond the boundaries of nature 
reserves. 

Tudalen 90



3 

 

development to be considered within the context of the Climate Change Strategy, given the continuing 
problem of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from road transport contributing to climate change. 

 
Transport emissions in Wales, predominantly from road use, were 13% of total Welsh GHG emissions in 
2011. Whilst transport emissions have fallen by 4% from the level in the 1990 base year, emissions from 
all Welsh sources over the same time period have fallen considerably more - by 21%. Any proposal 
effecting transport policy which is likely to either hold transport emissions at their current level or 
increase them should therefore be subject to a careful appraisal with reference to the Climate Change 
Strategy. 

 
The Consultation document projects increasing vehicle usage along the current M4 past Newport, but 
has no regard either to the resulting emissions impact or to the likelihood of such growth in traffic volume 
actually taking place.  

 

In the Climate Change Strategy one of the principal emissions targets is that, by 2020, the number of 
annual motor vehicle kilometres travelled in Wales has been reduced. This target does not appear to 
have been considered within the proposal for this major new road infrastructure. Within the Strategy the 
target is coupled with a commitment towards ‘low carbon modes’ of transport – yet this is only touched 
upon but not explored in the consultation document. 

 
The Climate Change Strategy recommends measures to encourage eco-driving, together with enhanced 
use of rail and bus services, to cut GHG emissions. The Consultation document references these 
options, but with no detail and no consideration about how best to implement them as alternatives to 
new road development.   

 
From a climate change perspective, a new road scheme should always be very much a last resort, and 
then only in circumstances where all other possibilities have been considered and shown not to meet 
future need. We do not believe this is the case with this proposal.  
 
The consultation documentation shows that much of the vehicle usage on this stretch of the M4 is short 
distance traffic, for which lower carbon alternatives – bus, bicycle and walking – should be identified and 
provided for. There is evidence to show that good public transport leads to a fall in car usage. Following 
an investment in low carbon transport solutions in London car use in the city has fallen by 35% over the 
past 15 years. 

 
In summary, the Consultation document shows a total and irresponsible disregard to the contribution of 
road transport to climate change. We must look to invest in low carbon sustainable alternatives to 
reduce road use and our emissions across Wales. There is recognition of this within the Climate Change 
Strategy but it is given no consideration within this Consultation document which is inconsistent with the 
Welsh Government’s policy on Climate Change.  

 
4. Consultation documentation 

4.1. Use of Data 

We question some of the data which has been used in the consultation document to justify the need for 
a new motorway.  
 
For example, one of the main justifications for the new road has been that traffic numbers on the 
existing M4 have been increasing

5
. The traffic modelling which has been carried out in relation to the 

new motorway has been based on out of date data and assumptions we believe are incorrect. The 
Welsh Government’s own traffic figures show that the M4 traffic volume (having fallen after 2007) has 
now stabilised, and there is no robust evidence to support a significant rise in the future. In addition the 
SATURN model used for traffic forecasting also fails to factor into its calculations the long term trend in 
increasing costs of car use, including rising fuel prices, which it is widely acknowledged will inevitably 
effect future traffic levels. 
 

                                                
5
 M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Consultation (March 2012)  

Tudalen 91



4 

 

The consultation documentation also uses out of date population predictions (based on data from 2008) 
to predict the levels of car ownership and use. The need for the new motorway is predicated upon a 
very rapidly-increasing population. However, the release of 2011 Census data has shown that these 
population predictions were overestimates.  
 

4.2. Consideration of Alternatives 

We are concerned that the consultations
6
 have been skewed in favour of the Welsh Government’s 

favoured M4 Relief Road across the Gwent Levels and have not taken account of reasonable 
alternatives to a new road across the Levels. Low carbon sustainable transport alternatives are not 
included within the Consultation document and therefore no assessment can be made of the costs - 
environmental or economic – compared with other more sustainable alternatives. Less environmentally 
damaging and cheaper road upgrade alternatives are also not included within the document, such as 
the A48 upgrade. The three road options presented are three variations of in the main the same route. 
 
The decision to discard the two less intrusive and less costly highway upgrade options was not 
consulted upon but decided between the M4 CEM consultation and the current consultation. Little 
justification for this decision as been provided and this process did not offer opportunity for the public or 
organisations to comment on the decision of Government to discard these options.  
 
We do not believe the Government have allowed sufficient time for the measures which have been 
implemented in recent years to ease congestion on the M4 to have taken effect. 
 
The Consultation document does not take full account of: 

 
a. The plethora of additional measures, either constructed or programmed, such as the duelling of the 

A465, the making public of the Steelworks Road, and a wide range of public transport and “smarter 
choice” measures, have not yet been in place long enough to exert downward pressure on traffic 
levels on the existing M4. 

b. The introduction of variable speed limits on the existing M4 has reduced accidents and other major 
congestion-triggering incidents. 

 
Together with our views on the current and projected traffic numbers presented above, this leads us to 
believe there is no need for a new motorway across the Gwent Levels. 
 
In addition, although within the consultation it is made clear that the Welsh Government believes the 
new road would bring significant economic benefit to South Wales

7
. we can see no evidence within the 

consultation, or in any other documentation produced by it,  to back up this assertion. 
 

4.3. Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 

In line with European legislative requirements the SEA must identify “reasonable alternatives” to the 
new motorway, the preferred option of Government.  We are very disappointed that, besides the ‘do 
nothing’ option the only alternatives presented are the Purple and Red Routes (which are very slight 
variations on the M4 Relief Road itself, all of which cut through the Gwent Levels of Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest). The SEA fails to consider alternatives that avoid the very significant damage to the 
SSSIs, in spite of the existence of a number of alternatives which many be viewed as reasonable. An 
example of this is an alternative consisting of the combination of the upgrade to the A48 and the former 
steel works road. If the Welsh Government is determined that further road building is a necessary part 
of the solution then we strongly believe such less damaging options should be considered. 
 
The SEA is further deficient because it attempts to downplay the adverse impacts on the environment 
from all of the alternatives set out in the draft Plan.  There is a marked difference between the severity, 
scale and longevity of impacts set out in the previous SEA Environmental Report (November 2012) and 

                                                
6
 M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Consultation (2012), SEA to the M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures Consultation 
(2012), SEA Scoping Consultation (2013), Draft Plan and SEA Environmental Report (2013) 
7
 “Congestion on the M4, particularly around Cardiff and Newport is sighted (sic) by the business community in South Wales 
as a barrier to economic growth” SEA Scoping Document, July 2013 

Tudalen 92



5 

 

those set out in the current SEA Environmental Report. No attempt is made to provide a rationale for 
these changes.   
 

5. Consultation Process 
5.1. Analysis of Consultation Responses 

In the analysis of consultation responses to the previous M4 CEM consultation held over the summer of 
2012 it states that the consultation “resulted in public support for the provision of an additional high 
quality road to the south of Newport”

8
. However, from the summary of responses of the 437 people or 

groups who responded to the consultation question related to the M4RR, 128 supported it or a variation 
of it, plus 32 who afforded “qualified support”. We are also disappointed that a number of responses 
have apparently been afforded very little consideration within the summary because they were 
submitted in response to a campaign. 
 

5.2. Accessibility 

We consider that every effort should be made to make consultations as accessible to the public as 
possible. We are concerned that the current consultation is not easily accessible. To respond to the 
formal consultation questions there is a requirement to register online at www.m4newport.com or 
request/ download a paper form. The formal consultation is comprised of nine detailed questions 
relating to the technical documentation of the draft plan, with only one opportunity for additional 
comments. We are concerned that the registration requirement and the detailed nature of the questions 
creates a barrier to public participation. 
 
We welcome the initiative to hold public drop-in sessions to provide the public with information on the 
draft plan. Nevertheless are disappointed that the public are unable to verbally register their opinion at 
these events. We believe any representations the Welsh Government or the consultant Arup receive 
during the consultation period should be fully considered by Government as part of the consultation and 
be analysed as a formal response.  
 

5.3. Minimum Consultation on previous SEA (2012)  

RSPB Cymru are disappointed the Welsh Government did not seek to consult for any longer than the 
minimum requirement (28 days) on the previous SEA Environmental Report (2012) in order to allow a 
wider response to the report. The Government’s own Good Practice Guide

9
 states that consultation 

should give appropriate timeframes for the public to express views. The SEA Regulations themselves 
state (Reg  13 (3)) that an effective opportunity must be given to the public to express their opinion.  
Given the overall time frame of the M4 Relief Road (construction to be completed in 2033) enabling a 
longer consultation period on the previous SEA would have had no impact on the timescales of the 
evolution of this project, but would have given organisations a better opportunity to respond. 

 
 

                                                
8
 M4 Corridor Enhancement Measures CEM Participation Report (August 2013) 
9
 A Practical Guide to the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive, WAG et al (2005) 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7657/practicalguidesea.pdf  

Tudalen 93



October 2013 

 

Submission to the  

Environment & Sustainability 

Committee 
 

in response to 
 

Call for Written Evidence: M4  
 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 94



  Friends of the Earth Cymru 

Friends of the Earth Cymru response to M4 Consultation Page 1 

Summary 

 

By any yardstick, the answer to the consultation question “whether current Welsh Government proposals in 

relation to the M4, and the process to date, have effectively balanced economic and environmental needs 

and interests” can only be “no”.  

 

Economic needs and interests 

 

1. A new motorway south of Newport was first proposed by Secretary of State for Wales in 19911.  

 

2. In whatever guise, the Wales Office or the Welsh Government have therefore had 22 years in which 

to develop a robust economic case for building a motorway bypass of Newport.  

 

3. On 19 April 2013, Friends of the Earth Cymru submitted a Freedom of Information request to the 

Welsh Government asking for: 

“All economic analyses (including cost-benefit analyses) relating to various options for 

modifications/improvements to the M4 around Newport”. 

 

4. On 21 May 2013, in appealing the Welsh Government’s deficient response, we asked: 

“I would be grateful if you could tell me if I am correct in assuming that the only publicly available 

information on [Benefit:Cost Ratio] relates to work packages that were not part of public consultation 

and were themselves incomplete”. 

 

5. On 18 June 2013 we received this response from Andy Falleyn, Deputy Director of Transport: 

“I have reviewed the additional economic analyses and cost-benefit information that we hold and 

which has been exempted under this section and can confirm that this information is a necessary 

part of our work to fully explore the options being considered for modifications and/or improvements 

to the M4 around Newport. The information is not complete and is subject to further amendment”. 

 

6. No analysis has ever been published – or, apparently, completed – by the Welsh Government or its 

predecessors to demonstrate whether or not there would be any economic benefit from a new M4.  

 

7. The Committee is seeking views on: 

“whether current Welsh Government proposals in relation to the M4, and the process to date, have 

effectively balanced economic and environmental needs and interests”.  

 

8. Clearly, based on the Welsh Government’s failure to publish an economic analysis the answer to this 

question can only be “no”. 

 

9. The Welsh Government’s failure to publish an economic analysis subverts proper scrutiny of the 

proposal and therefore subverts due democratic process. 

  

                                                           
1
 http://www.southwalesargus.co.uk/news/gwentnews/4496647.M4_RELIEF_ROAD__Timeline/ 

Tudalen 95



  Friends of the Earth Cymru 

Friends of the Earth Cymru response to M4 Consultation Page 2 

Environmental needs and interests 

 

10. The environmental case has been examined to some degree. The Welsh Government was forced to 

abandon its Strategic Environmental Assessment published in November 2012 following legal 

challenge by Friends of the Earth Cymru and Gwent Wildlife Trust, because it was so flawed2.  

 

11. Despite its flaws rendering it unlawful, even that consultation determined that the environmental 

impacts of a ‘high quality road to the south of Newport’ as having ‘major negative’ impacts on: 

§ Biodiversity (worse than any of the alternatives) 

§ Soil (worse than any of the alternatives) 

§ Water (worse than any of the alternatives) 

§ Material assets (only widening the motorway through the Brynglas tunnels was as bad) 

§ Cultural heritage (only widening the motorway through the Brynglas tunnels was as bad) 

§ Landscape and townscape (two of the alternatives were equally bad) 

 

12. Major negative impacts are defined as being:  

“direct, irreversible and permanent. The magnitude of the predicted effects will also be major”3.  

 

13. Our legal challenge did not contest the consultation’s conclusions on the scale of impacts; this was 

not one of the grounds on which it was unlawful. 

 

14. An objective analysis of the environmental impacts could only have concluded that the former 

Highway Option A (an additional high quality road south of Newport) was substantially the worst 

performing option in terms of environmental impact. 

 

15. Any alternative analysis would clearly have been irrational and subject to challenge in the courts.  

 

16. The current Strategic Environmental Assessment considers only three ‘high quality roads south of 

Newport’, and ‘do minimum’4. In these circumstances it is hardly surprising that there is a high 

degree of similarity between the three motorway options.  

 

17. What it difficult to comprehend is that the impact on several factors has been downgraded from 

‘major negative’ to ‘minor negative’ since the previous iteration: 

§ Biodiversity – now only minor negative impact 

§ Soil – now only minor negative impact 

§ Water – now only minor negative impact 

§ Material assets – now only minor negative impact 

 

18. It is not clear that there is any justification for this significant shift in reducing the impact of a high 

quality road to the south of Newport. A dispassionate observer might conclude that a degree of 

                                                           
2
 http://www.foe.co.uk/cymru/english/press_releases/m4_consultation_failure_060213.html 

3
 http://www.m4cem.com/downloads/reports/M4%20CEM%20SEA%20Environmental%20Report%20&%20Appendices.pdf page 

81 
4
 http://m4newport.com/assets/issue-m4-sea-environment-report---publication---c2.pdf page 91 

Tudalen 96



  Friends of the Earth Cymru 

Friends of the Earth Cymru response to M4 Consultation Page 3 

massaging the criteria or boundaries has taken place in order to make a motorway seem 

environmentally acceptable.  

 

19. We have serious concerns that this Strategic Environmental Assessment could be challenged in the 

courts for the following reasons: 

§ The apparent ‘downgrading’ of impacts since the previous iteration, with no apparent justification 

§ The failure to include any alternatives other than a high quality road to the south of Newport, and 

‘do minimum’, rendering the consultation redundant 

§ The inclusion of substantive options only that relate to the option with the worst environmental 

performance in the previous iteration. This would appear to indicate that the Welsh Government is 

determined to press ahead with an option with poor environmental credentials, and is therefore 

the outcome of the consultation has been pre-determined.   

 

20. The Committee is seeking views on: 

“whether current Welsh Government proposals in relation to the M4, and the process to date, have 

effectively balanced economic and environmental needs and interests”.  

 

21. Clearly, based on the Welsh Government’s multiple failures to either assess reasonable alternatives 

or to fairly assess those alternatives subject to assessment the answer to this question can only be 

“no” 

 

Conclusion 

 

22. By any yardstick, the answer to the consultation question “whether current Welsh Government 

proposals in relation to the M4, and the process to date, have effectively balanced economic and 

environmental needs and interests” can only be “no”. 

 

23. We are concerned that given the Welsh Government’s apparent pre-determination in favour of a 

motorway to the south of Newport, that redress may only be found through the courts.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 97



 

 

Environment and Sustainability Committee October 2013 
 
Purpose 
 

M4 Corridor Around Newport (i.e. M4 Relief Road / New M4 Project) 
 
1 Background 

 
1.1 There are recognised capacity and resilience problems on the M4 around 

Newport. Journey times are unreliable and congestion occurs, particularly during 
peak travel times. ICE Wales Cymru has called for improvements for many 
years.[1] 

  
2 Issues 

 
2.1 The Brynglas Tunnels have capacity restrictions and a history of problems 

relating to a number of fires and incidents in the twin bore, two-lane east and 
west bound tunnels. Major disruption to the highway network occurs when these 
happen that can and does spread rapidly across the region. 
 

2.2 In order to make the best of the available highway network, a managed 
motorway scheme has been implemented that has been in operation for a 
relatively short while. This, however, will not resolve the issues in the medium to 
long term. 
 

2.3 In addition an excess number of closely spaced junctions coupled with poor 
alignment (both horizontal and vertical) on the existing M4 conspire to lead to 
inefficient vehicle operation and an above average accident record for a highway 
of that character. Effectively the M4 in this location acts as the Newport Northern 
By-Pass (as it was conceived originally) and not as a strategic motorway. 

  
2.4 ICE Wales Cymru recognises that considerable amount of preplanning and 

design already carried out to seek solutions to the problem of motorway 
congestion and unreliable journey times which have become increasingly worse 
during the period of the studies and investigations. 

  
2.5 The morning and evening peak periods are lengthening such that they will 

eventually merge. The peak travel conditions may occur from 6am to 8pm in 
time.  

                                                 

1. [1]
 Institution of Civil Engineers Wales Cymru (2013) State of the Nation: Transport 

Briefing, p1; Institution of Civil Engineers Wales Cymru (2013) State of the Nation: 

Infrastructure 2010 Briefing, p3; Institution of Civil Engineers Wales Cymru (2013) 

State of the Nation: Defending Critical Infrastructure Briefing, p1: 
 

Eitem 7

Tudalen 98



 

 

2.6 This situation causes a great deal of concern because of the highway’s fragile 
nature – a simple incident could have a considerable effect and cause 
considerable consequential delays. 

  
 

3 Solution 
 

3.1 ICE Wales Cymru considers that there is a proven need for the provision of a 
new motorway to alleviate the problems and resolve the issues. 
 

3.2 ICE Wales Cymru considers that the proposed M4 is a key piece of the highway 
infrastructure and the provision will provide major benefits to the economy of 
South Wales. With a proven multiplier effect1  of at least 2.84 for investment in 
infrastructure, the construction of the new motorway will reap both medium and 
long term benefits to the area. As the M4 links to and serves mid and west 
Wales, the benefits provided and economic growth will be felt across much of 
Wales. 

  
3.3 Having considered the consultation, ICE Wales Cymru believes that the Black 

route – to the south of Newport will provide the optimum solution to the 
problems. This has been supported by ICE Wales Cymru in the past and it is 
considered to strike a balance between the sometimes differing needs / 
objectives of transport infrastructure, business needs, economic regeneration, 
the needs of the travelling public and not least, the environmental aspects. 

  
3.4 In consideration of the sustainability issues, ICE Wales Cymru believes that the 

correct balance is struck between the environmental, financial and social 
aspects. Whilst the Black route traverses SSSI designated land, suitable and 
proportionate measures are proposed as part of the overall package. ICE Wales 
Cymru considers that it may be possible for the project to include further 
environmental measures that could even enhance the SSSI areas, i.e. instead of 
a detrimental effect, the project could have net positive benefits by enlarging the 
area of the SSSI. 

  
3.5 Considering the air quality issues, there is a current problem on the existing 

motorway as evidenced by Air Quality Management Areas. The Welsh 
Government is already required to address this matter. It is considered that the 
Black route proposed will alleviate much of the ongoing problem by enabling 
existing and future traffic to operate more efficiently. 
 

  
3.6 If the Black route is implemented, there will be considerable opportunities to 

enhance the local travel modes of transport along the route of the existing M4. 
ICE Wales Cymru believes that these measures should be investigated for 
implementation as part of the overall project. 
 

  
                                                 
1
 UK Contractors Group / LEK Consulting (2012) Construction in the UK Economy, The Benefits of 

Investment, p10. 

Tudalen 99



 

 

4 Funding 
  
4.1 ICE Wales Cymru recognises that funding of the motorway will require the 

provision of borrowing power for the Welsh Government. ICE Wales Cymru 
strongly believes that this should not be a deterrent to the enabling or provision 
of the required motorway. 

  
5 Conclusion 
  
5.1 There is an established link between the condition of the Infrastructure and the 

economy of Wales and continued investment and improvements to the transport 
infrastructure of Wales will assist in economic growth of Wales.  

  
5.2 The construction of the new motorway will bring additional benefits of jobs to 

Wales on the planning, design, construction and maintenance of the motorway 
as well as stimulating additional jobs across Wales. The current conditions are 
hindering development. 

  
5.3 ICE Wales Cymru strongly supports the provision of a new motorway to the 

south of Newport. 
  
5.4 
 
 
 

ICE Wales Cymru considers that the Black route offers the optimum solution. 

 
 
 
Keith Jones Director, Institution of Civil Engineers Wales Cymru 
 
17

th
 October 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
§ The Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE) was founded in 1818 to ensure professionalism in civil engineering.  It 

represents over 80,000 civil engineers in the UK and across the globe and has over 3500 members in Wales.  

§ ICE has long worked with the government of the day to help it to achieve its objectives, and has worked with 

industry to ensure that construction and civil engineering remain major contributors to the UK economy and 

UK exports.  

§ For further information visit: www.ice.org.uk and www.ice.org.uk/wales 

Tudalen 100



 

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

Lleoliad: 
Canolfan hyfforddiant Lantra, Maes Sioe 

Frenhinol Cymru, Llanfair ym Muallt 

 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Iau, 24 Hydref 2013 

 

  
Amser:  13:20 - 15:00 

 

  
Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=cy_700002_24_10_2013&t=0&l=cy 

 

 

Cofnodion Cryno: 

 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  Mick Antoniw 

Llyr Gruffydd 

Julie Morgan 

William Powell 

Antoinette Sandbach 

Joyce Watson 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Ed Bailey, Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru 

Ceri Davies, Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc Cymru 

Keri Davies, Grŵp Organig Cymru 

Dylan Morgan, Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru  

Rhian Nowell-Phillips, Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru 

Sarah Price, Clybiau Ffermwyr Ifanc Cymru 

Ben Underwood, Cymdeithas y Tirfeddianwyr 

Gavin Williams, Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru 

 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Alun Davidson (Clerc) 

Catherine Hunt (Dirprwy Glerc) 

Nia Seaton (Ymchwilydd) 

Elfyn Henderson (Ymchwilydd) 

 

  

 

Eitem 8

Tudalen 101



TRAWSGRIFIAD 
Gweld trawsgrifiad o'r cyfarfod. 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  
1.1 Yn absenoldeb Dafydd Elis-Thomas, etholwyd William Powell yn Gadeirydd dros dro 
o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.22. 
 
1.1 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan Dafydd Elis-Thomas, Russell George a Julie James. 

 

2 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar  
2.1 Bu’r tystion yn ateb cwestiynau gan aelodau’r Pwyllgor. 

 

3 Rheoli Tir yn Gynaliadwy: Tystiolaeth Lafar  
3.1 Bu’r tystion yn ateb cwestiynau gan aelodau’r Pwyllgor. 

 

4 Papurau i’w nodi  
4.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor y cofnodion. 
 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r 

cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: Eitem 6  

 

6 Cyllideb drafft 2014-15  
6.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor ei lythyr at y Pwyllgor Cyllid. 
  

 

Tudalen 102


	Agenda
	3 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru
	Papur 1

	4 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan yr Athro Stuart Cole
	5 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan y Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach a Chynghrair Trafnidiaeth De Ddwyrain Cymru
	Papur 4  (Saesneg yn unig)

	6 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Ymddiriedolaethau Natur Cymru, RSPB Cymru a Chyfeillion y Ddaear Cymru
	Papur 6 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 7  (Saesneg yn unig)

	7 Ymchwiliad i gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer yr M4 o amgylch Casnewydd - Tystiolaeth gan Sefydliad y Peirianwyr Sifil Cymru
	8 Papurau i™w nodi

